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ROBINSON, FARMER, COX ASSOCIATES

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUINTANTS A PROFESSIONAL LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of the Board of Supervisors
County of Pulaski, Virginia

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
discretely presented component units, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the County of Pulaski, Virginia, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2010, which
collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the County of Pulaski, Virginia's management.
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the Specifications for Audits
of Counties, Cities, and Towns, issued by the Auditor of Public Accounts of the Commonwealth of
Virginia. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the discretely presented component
units, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the County of Pulaski,
Virginia, as of June 30, 2010, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where
applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December
8, 2010, on our consideration of the County of Pulaski, Virginia’s internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and
not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis, the budgetary comparison information and the Schedules of
Funding Progress as listed in the table of contents, are not a required part of the basic financial
statements but are supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures to the Management’s
Discussion and Analysis, the budgetary comparison information and the Schedules of Funding
Progress, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of
measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not
audit the information and express no opinion on it.

-3-



Qur audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statemenis that
collectively comprise the County of Pulaski, Virginia’'s basic financial statements. The introductory
section, other supplementary information, and statistical section are presented for purposes of
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schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as
required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit QOrganizations, and is also not a required part of the basic financial
statements of the County of Pulaski, Virginia. The combining and individual statements and
schedules, supporting schedules and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards have been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in
our opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements,
taken as a whole. The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no
opinion on them,

/h{ymm, c;?;an.m, 4{ @oam

Christiansburg, Virginia
December 8, 2010



COUNTY OF PULASKI, VIRGINIA
Management's Discussion and Analysis

The discussion and analysis of the Pulaski County finances for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2010
(FY10) is offered as a way to broaden understanding of the County finances and the impact of those
finances on services provided to Pulaski County residents. This report should be read in conjunction with
the County’s financial statements, which follow this section. By GASB 34 accounting standards, this
report includes all County government functions including the Board of Supervisors, Discretely Presented
Component Units School Board, Pulaski County Public Service Authority (PSA) and the Industrial
Development Authority of Pulaski County (IDA).

Financial Highlights for Fiscal Year 2009-10

Total net assets value of the primary government was $41.0 million at the end of FY 10 based on
total assets of $81.0 million and total liabilities of $40.0 million (Exhibit 1). As noted in Exhibit 1,
these liabilities include total payout of long-term debt associated with school construction and
remodeling, lease purchase agreements, landfill post-closure monitoring costs, compensated
absences, and other post employment benefits while the total assets reflect the depreciated value
of existing county owned facilities.

For FY 10 combined program and general revenues of 346.4 million excesded general
expenditures of $42.6 million by approximately $3.8 million (Exhibit 2). The increase in net assets
is explained in the Statement of Activities analysis of the Financial Analysis of the County as a
Whole section on page 7.

As described in Exhibit 11, total general fund revenues were $2.5 million or 4% less than the
budgeted $56.7 million revenue estimate while expenditures were $3.1 million, or 6% more than
the $49.3 million budgeted expenditures {including transfers). The net change in fund balance
was $1.7 million.

The County's totat outstanding debt for school improvements, school construction, economic
development, compensated absences and landfili monitoring decreased by $2.0 million from
$37.0 million on July 1, 2009 to $35 million on June 30, 2010 (Note 7). In addition, $64,429 was
added as a net OPEB (Other Post Employment Benefits) obligation in accordance with GASB
Statement 45 (Exhibit 11).

As described in Note 17, the undesignated fund balance as of June 30, 2010 for the primary
government/component unit combined was $21.5 million, or 27% of budgeted FY 11 iotal County
General and CIP funds and Component Unit, School Board operating expenditures in the amount
of $79.4 million. The Board of Supervisors has historically maintained an undesignated general
fund balance of at least 10% of general, special revenue and component unit fund expenditures
in order to ensure adequate cash flow throughout the budget cycle and in accordance with good
management practices.

As described in Exhibit 5, the general fund balance increased by approximately $1.7 million. That
amount is explained furiher in the Analysis of the County Funds section below.



COUNTY OF PULASKI, VIRGINIA
Management's Discussion and Analysis {continued)

Qverview of the Financial Statements
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financial statements which comprise three sections: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2} fund
financial statements, and 3) noies to the financial statements. This report also contains other
supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves,

Government-wide financial statements - The government-wide financial statements are designed to
provide readers with a broad overview of the County’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector
business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the County’s assets and liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as nef assefs. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may
serve as a useful indicator of whether the County is improving or deteriorating when considering both
financial condition and physical assets.

The statement of activities shows how the government's net assets changed during the recent fiscal year.
All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs,
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this
statement for items that will result in financial changes in the present and future fiscal periods (e.g.,
uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave.)

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the County that are principally
supporied by taxes and intergovernmenial revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that
are mtended to recover all or a S|gn|f|cant port|on of their costs through user fees and charges (busmess—
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COUNTY OF PULASKI, VIRGINIA
Management's Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Proprietary funds — When the County charges customers for the services it provides, these services are
generally reported in proprietary funds, Proprietary funds are reported utilizing the full accrual accounting
method as are all activities reported in the Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities. The
County’s Internal Service Fund, one type of proprietary fund, is the same as the government-wide
husiness-type activities; however, the fund financial statements provide more detail and additional
information, such as cash flows. The County's proprietary funds include the Pulaski County Public
Service Authority, the Industrial Development Authority of Pulaski County and the Internal Service Fund.

Fiduciary funds — The County is the trustee, or fiduciary, for the County's agency funds. The County is
responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used for their intended purposes. All
of the County’s fiductary activities are reported in a separate statement of fiduciary net assets and a
staiement of changes in fiduciary net assets. The County excludes these activities from the County’s
government-wide financial statements because the County cannot use these assets to finance its
operations. The County’s fiduciary funds include Special Welfare, Performance Bond, the Employee
Flexible Benefits and Local Sales Tax Funds.

Notes to_the basic financial statements - The notes to the basic financial statements provide additional
information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund
financial statements.

Required supplementary information - In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying
notes, this report also presents certain required supplementary information concerning the County's
budgetary comparisons and progress in funding its obligation to provide pension benefils {o its
employees.

Financial Analysis of the County as a Whole

A comparative analysis of government-wide information is as follows:
Summary of Net Assets:

Details in the government-wide financial statements for FY 10 can be found in Exhibit 1. The following
table reflects the condensed Statement of Net Assets (in millions) comparing FY 10 to FY 09.

Summary of Net Assets:

Total Primary Component Unit
Government School Board
2010 200 2010 2009

Current and other assets 3 323 % 321 % 49 § 52
Capital assets, net 48.7 48.1 5.3 6.4
Total assets 3 81.0 & 80.2 § 102 % 11.6
Other liabilities $ 49 3% 60 3% 4.0 % 42
Long term liabilities 351 36.7 1.9 1.9
Total liabilities 3 400 3% 427 § 59 3 6.1
Net Assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of
related debt 3 16.3 §. 349 § 53 & 6.5

Unresfricted 239 221 (1.0) (1.0)
Total net assets $ 410 § 375 3 43 % 5.5




COUNTY OF PULASKI, VIRGINIA
Management's Discussion and Analysis {continued)

The County's combined net assets increased from $37.5 million to $41.0 million as explained in the
Statement of Activities section below. Unrestricted net assets, the portion of net assets that can be used
to finance the day-to-day activities of the County, totaled $23.9 million. Net assets invested in capital
assets, net of related debt, represents the amount of capital assets owned by the County and Component
Units total $41.0 million. Net assets are reported as restricted when constraints on asset use are
externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, regulators, or imposed by law through
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. Seized asset funds are restricted so that they can be
used for specific law enforcement purposes. Cormponent unit {School Board) net assets decreased by
$1.2 million, from 5.5 million in FY08 to 4.3 million in FY 10.

Capital Assets

The following tables display the County's and School Board’s (Component Unit) capital assets at June 30,
2010, as well as the change in capital assets for FY 10 in millions of dollars:

Capital Assets:

Total Primary Component Unit
Government School Board
2010 2009 2010 2009
Non-Depreciable Assets:
Land $ 24 3 22 % 06 3 06
Construction in Progress 21.5 15.8 0.0 0.0
Other Capital Assets;
Buildings and systems 3t.5 31.0 18.3 18.3
Machinery and Equipment 10.4 10.4 6.2 6.0
Accumulated Depreciation {17.1) {15.3) {(12.8) {18.5)
Totals $ 487 $ 481 % 53 % 6.4
Primary Government:
Changes in Capital Assets:
Balance, Balance,
June 30, June 30,
2009 Additions Deletions 2010
Nan-Depreciable Assets:
Land $ 22 % 02 § 00 3% 2.4
Construction in Progress 19.8 1.9 (0.1) 216
Other Capital Assets:
Buildings and systems 31.0 0.5 (0.1) 34
Machinery and Equipment 10.4 06 (0.6) 10.4
Accumuiated Depreciation (15.3) (1.8) 0.0 {37.1)
Totals 3 481 % 14 & (0.8) § 48.7

Remaining portion of this page left blank intentionally



COUNTY OF PULASKI, VIRGINIA
Management's Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Component Unit-School Board:
Changes in Capital Assets:

Balance, Balance,
June 30, June 20,
2008 Additions Deletions 2010
Non-Depreciable Asseis:
Land $ 06 & 00 % 00 % 0.5
Construction in Progress 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Other Capital Assets:
Buildings and systems 18.3 0.0 0.0 18.3
Machinery and Equipment 6.0 0.2 0.0 6.2
Accumulated Depreciation {18.5) {1.3) 0.0 (19.8)
Totals 3 64 % (1.1 % 0.0 % 5.3

These amounts are part of the Primary Government's capital assets because long-term debt financed
these additions.

Additional detailed capital asset information can be found in Note 13 in the "Notes to Financial
Statements” section of the report.

Long-Term Debt

The following table displays the County and Schools (Component Unit) Outstanding Debt at June 30,
2010, in millions of dollars:

Government School Board
2010 2009 2019 2009

General Obligation Bonds 3 169 § 102 % 00 % 0.0
Literary Loans 4.1 4.5 0.0 0.0
Lease Revenue Note 11.9 20.0 0.0 0.0
Capital Leases 01 0.3 0.0 0.0
Unamortized Bond Premium 0.9 09 0.0 0.0
Landfill Post Closure

Liability 0.2 0.3 0.0 0.0
Net OPEB Obligation 0.2 0.1 0.4 0.2
Compensated Absences 0.7 0.7 15 1.7

Total 3 35.0 % 370 % 19 § 1.9

Long-term debt obligations decreased by $2.0 million in FY 10. Additional detailed information on tong-
term debt activity can be found in Note 7 and Note 8 in the "Notes to Financial Statements” section of the
report for the County and Schools, respectively.

Remaining portion of this page left blank intentionally



COUNTY OF PULASKI, VIRGINIA
Management’'s Discussion and Analysis {continued)

Statement of Activities:

The following comparative table shows the revenues and expenses of the governmental activities for FY
10 and the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009(FY 09) (in millions):

Total Primary Component Unit
Government School Board
2010 2009 2010 2009
Revenues:

Program Revenues:
Charges for services $ 12 % 12 8 1.0 & 1.0
Operating grants and contributions 12.0 121 349 35.0
Capital grants and contributions 37 0.0 0.0 02

General Revenues:
General property taxes 212 20.1 0.0 0.0
Other local taxes 5.2 6.6 0.0 0.0
Other 31 32 0.1 0.1
Payments from County 0.0 0.0 10.3 114
Total Revenuegs $ 46,4 § 432 3 46.3 § 47.7

Expenses:
General government $ 22 % 26 % 00 % 0.0
Judicial administration 1.6 1.5 0.0 0.c
Public safety 8.0 6.4 0.0 0.0
Public works 1.5 14 0.0 0.0
Health and welfare 11.0 10.2 0.0 0.0
Education 10.3 1386 47 .4 47.3
Parks, recreation and cultural 13 1.4 0.0 0.0
Community development 5.0 38 0.0 0.0
interest on long ferm debt 1.7 1.3 0.0 0.0
Total Expenses $ 426 § 422 3 474 3 47.3
Changes in Net Assets: 3.8 1.0 (1.1) 04
Transfers 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Net Assets, Beginning of Year 37.2 364 54 4.9
Net Assets, End of Year 3 41.0 % 374 5% 43 % 5.3
Revenues

For FY 10, revenues from governmental funds fotaled $46.4 million. General property tax revenues, the
County’s largest revenue source, were $21.2 million, an increase of $1.1 million. Other local taxes
including local sales tax, communications tax, hotel and motel room faxes and meals tax) were $5.2
million, a decrease of approximately $1.4 million over FY 09. With the exception of Restaurant Food
Taxes, all local taxes saw significant decreases during FY 10.

Component unit {School Board) revenues totaled $46.3 million, including a $10.3 million payment from

the Primary Government not counting continued investment by the Board of Supervisors in school
construction (debt service on existing loans).

-10-



COUNTY OF PULASKI, VIRGINIA
Management's Discussion and Analysis {continued)

Expenses

For FY 10, expenses for primary governmental activities totaled $42.6 million an increase of $.4 million
over the prior year as shown in Exhibit 2.

Education is a very high priority in the Pulaski County; consequently the Board of Supervisors contributed
$10.3 million to the operation of the Pulaski County schools excluding debt service costs. This accounts
for more than 24% of the County’s total budgeted expenditures. |t should also be noted that the Board of
Supervisors has carried over any unused portion of the FY 10 contribution io FY 11 to use iowards
School operations.

Financial Analysis of the County's Funds

For FY 10, the general fund reflects a fund balance of $25.9 million, an increase of $1.7 million from FY
09. The following table shows a comparison between the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 amounts to the
FY 2010 amounts for the General Fund as shown in Exhibit 5.

General Fund

2010 2009 Change
Revenues:
General Property Taxes ] 208 % 201 $ 0.7
Other Local Taxes 52 6.6 {(1.4)
Permits, Privilege Fees and Regulatory Licenses 0.7 0.7 0.0
Fines and Forfeitures 0.0 0.0 0.0
Revenue from Use of Money and Properiy 03 0.4 {0.1)
Charaes for Serviceg 045 0.5 0.0
Miscellaneous 0.1 0.1 0.0
Recovered Costs 0.7 0.7 0.0
Revenue from the Commonwealth 11.3 10.6 0.7
Revenue from the Federal Government 7.0 36 34
Total Revenues $ 466 5 433 % 3.3
Expenditures:
Generat Government Administration 3 20 8 20 % 0.0
Judicial Administration 18 1.5 0.1
Public Safety 7.2 6.7 0.5
Public Works 1.4 1.3 0.1
Health and Welfare 11.0 10.4 06
Education 10.3 11.5 (1.2)
Parks, Recrgation and Cultural 1.3 13 0.0
Community Development 4.6 2.5 2.1
Principal 9.4 1.8 76
Interest 1.6 1.5 0.1
Total Expenditures $ 504 § 405 § 8.9
Excess (3.8 2.8 (6.6)
Other Financing Sources (Uses) 55 (2.9) 8.4
Net Change in Fund Balance 1.7 {0.1) 1.8
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 24.2 243 (0.1)
Fund Balance End of Year $ 259 % 242 % 1.7

-11 -



COUNTY OF PULASK]I, VIRGINIA
Managementi's Discussion and Analysis (continued)

The increase in general property taxes of $0.7 million can be aftributed to an increase real estate
valuation due to reassessment in FY 2010 along with an decrease in the real estate tax rate during FY
10. Other local taxes and local revenues saw significant decreases while revenues from the
Commonwealth and the Federal governments saw increases. These five functional areas of revenue
explain much of the $1.7 million increase in fund balance.

On the expenditure side, most the increase of approximately $9.9 million can be explained in the following
two areas. First, principal payments on debt increased $7.6 million due to a refinancing of school debt
related to Riverlawn Elementary School. Community development expenditures increased by $2.1 million
as Rural Development funding was transferred to the Pulaski County PSA for water and/or sewer line
extension projects in several areas of the County.

All capital and school board unused appropriations from the 2010 fiscal year were carried over by the
Board of Supervisors for use in FY 2011,

General Fund Budgetary Highlights
The following table presents revenues and expenditures for the General Fund conly for FY 10 (in millions):

Original Amended
Budget Budget Actuai Variance
Revenues:
Property Taxes 3 19.6 % 199 % 208 ¢ 0.9
Other Local Taxes 55 55 52 -0.3
Permits, Fees and Licenses 06 086 0.7 0.1
Fines and Forfeitures 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0
Revenue from Use of Money and Property 0.1 0.1 0.3 0.2
Charges for Services 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.0
Miscellanegus 0.6 03 0.1 -0.2
Recovered Costs 0.4 05 07 02
Intergovermental 14.3 21.6 18.2 -3.4
Total 3 4178 491§ 466 3 2.5
Expenditures and transfers:
General Government Administration & 20% 228 20% 0.2
Judicial Administration 1.5 1.7 15 0.2
Public Safety 73 7.8 72 0.6
Public Works 14 1.4 14 0.0
Health and Welfare 10.7 12.0 11.1 0.8
Education 10.8 112 10.3 0.9
Parks, Recreation and Culturat 1.2 14 1.3 0.1
Community Development 0.5 6.4 48 1.8
Non-departmental 6.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Debt Service 35 119 9.4 25
Transfers 0.0 0.0 1.6 -1.6
Total 5 389 % 56.0 § 504 % 5.6

It should be noted that this schedule is shown on the budgetary basis. In comparing the original budget
to the amended budget both revenues and expenditures increased. Most of this change can be attributed
to carry-over appropriations for County construction projects, as noted in the transfers. The trend wil
continue unti! building space needs are met by the renovation of the Maple Shade shopping mall and the
renovation of the County Administration building.

-12-



COUNTY OF PULASKI, VIRGINIA
Management’'s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Economic Factors and Future Budgets

The primary factors affecting the financial viability of Pulaski are limited options for revenue increases,
continued fluctuations in state revenues, and changes in the national economy.

Limited Revenue Options - Community needs and inflationary pressures require that revenues or
governmental efficiency increase in order to maintain and improve the quality of public services currently
enjoyed by county residents. Locally generated revenues have hisiorically increased at a rate of
approximately 3% excluding the impact of reassessments. However, this rate is projected to decline to
an averaae of less than 1%. This drop can be orimarilv attributed to leaal limits placed bv the General

Assembly on how counties can raise revenue to meet community needs. An analysis of options indicates
that the primary remaining options for raising needed revenue are limited to real estate taxes and
personal property taxes.

State Revenues - Currently, state funding is projected to account for 42%, or $32.5 million, of the
County's 2011 budget, dropping from 49% in the FY09 budget, while local real estate taxes account for
18% percent of total County revenue, increasing from 16% in FY09. A one perceni change in staie
revenue results in a $30.3 million change in the local budget, or the equivalent of a $0.015 cent change on
the real estate tax rate. Thus, changes in State revenue have a direct impact on the financial picture of
the County and on its ability to meet the needs of County residents.

Other factors that are expected to impact future budgets include:

1. Anticipated GASB Statement #4565 increases for other post employment benefits.

2. Funding for the Capital Improvement Plan will need to address office space needs, funding of
joint services, replacement of leased network connections between buildings and replacement of
school telephone systems.

3. The ability to maintain increasing operational costs will be dependent on revenue growth from
business activity in the County andfor finding better ways of providing needed community
services through joint services and other innovations.

4. The County will need to invest in new economic development initiatives including the purchase of
the next industrial park and conceptualization of future “shell” buildings making possible rapid
response to business and industrial needs for new facilities.

— TN e

the provision of public safety services, tax and utility bill collections and improved property
mainienance.

6. The condition of the local, regional, state and national economies and a resulting increase in
demand for services should economic conditions not improve soon.

Contacting the County’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors and creditors with
a aeneral overview of the County's finances and io demonstrate the Countv’'s accountability for the
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County of Pulaski, Virginia
Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2010

Exhibit 1

Component
Frimary Government Lnits
Governmental School Public Service Industrial Development
Activities Board Authority Authority

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents 3 16,974,009 5 461,781 § 1,926,044 § 32,107
Investments 5,721,884 - - -
Receivables {MNet of Allowance for Uncellectibles):

Taxes 2,098,834 - - -

Accounis Receivable 353,429 - 947,520 BEB 466

Other Local Taxes and Fees 434,065 - - -

Note Receivable - - - 8,974,119

Rent Receivable - - - 6,764

Interest Receivable - - - 251,829
Prepaid Expenses - - - 19,378
Due from Primary Gevernmeant - 2,836,963 322,786 313,767
Due frem Other Governmental Units 2,118,298 1,586,804 - -
Advances to Component Units 726,420 - - -
Restricted Assels:

Temporarily Restricted:

Cash and Cash Equivalents (in Custody of Others) 887,121 - 382,632 -
Organization Expense {Net of Accumulated Amortization) - - 4,428 -
Capilal Assets:

tand 2,434,720 564,527 127,700 1,034,385
Building and System 22,780,113 2,805,404 -
Machinery and Equipment 1,942,193 1,924,569 880,266 10,146 B85
Infrastructure . - 14,472,508 -
Construction in Progress 21,546,076 - 3,280,324 -
Total Assets 3 51,000,162 3 10,180,048 § 22,344,208 % 21,637,680
LIABILITIES
Accounis Payable 3 522,656 $ 252,706 % 596,143 § 1,122,253
Contracts Payable - 3,740,043 - -
Customer Deposits - - 105,074 -
N - Interest Pavable .‘ﬁ]%,b _ 42,328 251,829
f’m ! [}
i?
Advances Due to Primary Government - - 225,420 500,000
Unearned Revenue 200,883 - - -
f.ong-term Liabilities:
Due Within One Year 2,218,076 152,273 341,807 1,074,964
Due in More Than One Year 32,875,182 1,737,101 7.976,576 10,643,457
Total Liabilities 3 39,861,141 § 5,882,123 § 9,287,349 § 13,692,503
NET ASBETS
Invested in Capital Assets, Nel of Related Debt $ 16,318,104 3 5,294,500 $ 10,585,905 $ 8,768,250
Restricted for:
Rural Development Debl Reserves - - 382,632 -
Construction 845,219 - - -
Seized Assets 15,902 - - -
Unrestricted {deficit) 23,859,796 (S56,575) 2,088,322 (723.073)
Total Net Assels 3 41,039,021 3 4207825 § 13,056,869 § 8,045,177

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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County of Pulaski, Virginia

Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2010

Exhibit 3

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments

Receivables (Net of Allowange for Uncollectibles):

Taxes
Other Local Taxes and Fees
Due from Gther Funds
Due from Other Governmental Units
Advances to Companent Units
Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities

Accounts Payable

Reconciled Overdraft

Due to Other Funds

Due to Componentl Units

Deferred Revenue

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances:
Reserved
Unreserved:
Designated
Undesignated (deficit)
Total Fund Balances
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

School Other

General Construction Governmental Total
% 19,973,571 $ g s - % 19,674,009
6,305,434 845,219 - 7,150,653
2,008,834 - - 2,058,834
434,065 - . - 434 065
- - 282,740 282,740
2,045,602 - 72,658 2,118,298
725,420 - - 725,420
3 31,583,326 § 845257 & 355,438 § 32,784,019
$ 350,831 % 65280 % 41,669 § 457,780
- 326,189 - 326,189
235,646 - - 235,646
3,159,749 - 313,767 3,473,516
1,977,241 - - 1,977,241
$ 5723467 § 391,469 § 355,436 % 6,470,372
$ 15,902 % 845219 § - % 861,121
4 467 368 - - 4,467,368
21,376,589 (391,431) - 20,985,158
3 25,859.858 § 453,788 % - % 26,313,647
3 31,583,326 & 845,257 & 355,436 % 32,784,019

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit 4
County of Pulaski, Virginia
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds
To the Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2010

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets are
different because:

Total fund balances per Exhibit 3 - Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds 3 26,313,647
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and
therefore, are not reported in the funds. 48,713,102
Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures
and, therefore, are deferred in the funds. 1,776,358
Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the
current period and therefore, are not reporied in the funds (35,764,086)
Net Assets of Governmental Activities 3 41,039,021

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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County of Pulaski, Virginia

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Exhibit &

REVENUES
General Property Taxes
Other Local Taxes
Permits, Privilege Fees and Regulatory Licenses
Fines and Forfeitures
Revenue from Use of Money and Property
Charges for Services
Miscellaneous
Recovered Costs
Intergovernmental Revenues:
Commonwealth
Federal Government
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Generat Government Administration
Judicial Administration
Public Safety
Public Works
Health and Welfare
Education
Parks, Recreation and Cultural
Community Development
Capital Projecis
Debt Service:
Principal Retiremeant
Interest and Other Fiscal Charges
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures

Other Financing Sources {Uses)
Transfers In
Transfers Qut
Issuance of Debt
Premium on bond issuance
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance - Beginning
Fund Balance - Ending

General School Con- Other Govern-

Fund struction Fund mental Funds Toftal
20,836,110 % -8 -3 20,836,110
5,171,842 - - 5,171,842

664,789 - - 664,789

31,439 - - 31,439

293,324 3,903 - 297,227

516,597 - - 516,597

117,028 - 91,604 208,630

659,504 - - 659,594
11,319,231 - - 11,319,231
7,004,700 - - 7,004,700
46,614,652 % 3,803 § 91,604 3 46,710,159
1,944,756 $ -8 38,096 % 1,982,852
1,547,625 - - 1,647,825
7,240,425 - 130,310 7,370,735
1,408,091 - - 1,408,091
11,092,709 - 100,179 11,192,888
10,288,266 - 381,150 10,669,436
1,309,393 - 87,663 1,397,056
4,612,962 - 958,622 5,571,584

- 685,058 - 685,058

9,442,120 - - 9,442,120
1,580,316 - - 1,590,316
50,476,683 % 685,058 3 1,696,020 $ 52,857,761
{3.862,031) § (681,155) % (1.604,416) {6.147,602)

3,831 % -8 1,599,860 % 1,603,791
(1,937,725) - (3,831) {1,941,556)
7,465,000 - 8,287 7,473,287

40,136 - - 40,136

55671,242 $ -5 1,604,416 § 7.175,658
1,709,211 & {681,155) $ -5 1,028,056
24,150,648 1,134,943 - 25,285,591
25,859,859 3 453788 -5 26,313,647

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement,
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County of Pulaski, Virginia

Reconciliation of Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balance of Governmental Funds

to the Statement of Activities
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Exhibit 8

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are

different because:

Net changes in fund balance - total governmental funds

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
Statement of Activities the cost of those assets are allocated over their
estimated useful lives and reporied as depreciation expense. This is the
amount by which the capital outtays exceeded depreciation in the current
period.

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds

The issuance of long-term debt {(e.g. bonds, leases) provides current financial
resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-
term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds.
Neither fransaction, however, has any effect on net assets. Also,
governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts,
and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are
deferred and amortized in the Statemeant of Activities. This amount is the effect
of these differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related iiems.

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use
of current financial resources and, therefore are not reported as expenditures
in governmental funds.

Change in net assets of governmental activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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1,028,056

561,925

337,161

2,053,852

{211,393)
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County of Pulaski, Virginia
Statement of Net Assets
Proprietary Fund
June 30, 2010

Exhibit 7

Health Insurance Internal
Premiums Service
Fund Fund
ASSETS
Current Assels:
Receivables (Net of Allowance for Uncollectibles):
Accounts Receivable $ 241 459 3 111,970
Total Assets 3 241,459 $ 111,870
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable $ - 3 64,876
Due to Other funds - 47,094
Reconciled Overdraft 241,459 -
Total Liabiiities $ 241,459 3 111,970
NET ASSETS
Unrestricted $ - $ -
Total Net Assets 3 - $ -

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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County of Pulaski, Virginia
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets
Proprietary Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Exhibit 8

Health Insurance Internal
Premiums Service
Fund Fund
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for Services:
Information Technology Charges - $ 216,518
Garage Charges - 787,299
Communication Charges - 100,326
LI - - W‘CE
e
Total Operating Revenues 5,492 465 5 1,104,143
OPERATING EXPENSES
Information Technology - 3 373,084
Central Garage - 933,448
Communications - 135,376
Insurance claims and expenses 5,492 465 -
Total Operating Expenses 5,492 465 $ 1,441,908
Operating Income (Loss) - $ (337,765)
Transier In - $ 337,765
Change in Net Assets - -
Net Assets - Beginning - -
Net Assets - Ending - 3 -

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit 9
County of Pulaski, Virginia
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Health Insurance Internal
Premiums Service
Fund Fund

CASH FLOWS PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTiV!TIES

"— —_—
r— ——
Payments to employees for services - (472,602) |
Receipts for insurance premiums 5,251,006 -
Payments for i msurance premlums (5,492 465}




Exhibit 10
County of Pulaski, Virginia
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2010

Agency
Funds
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 142,039
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 3 3,923
Amounts Held for Others:
Social Services Clients $ 20,800
Confractors 38,533
County Employees 78,783
Total amounts held for others 3 138,116
Total Liabilities 3 142,039

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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COUNTY OF PULASKI, VIRGINIA

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2010

Note 1-Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

The financial statements of the County conform to generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP)
applicable to government units promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).
The following is a summary of the more significant policies:

A

Reporting Entity

The County of Pulaski, Virginia is a political subdivision governed by an elected five-member
Beoard of Supervisors. The accompanying financial statements present the government and its
component units, entities, for which the government is considered to be financially accountable.
Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are, in substance, part of the
government's operations.

Blended Component Uniis - None

Discretely Presented Component Units - The component unit columns in the financial statements
include the financial data of the County’s discretely presented component units. The component
uniis are reported in a separate column to emphasize that they are legally separate from the
County.

The Pulaski County School Board operates the elementary and secondary schools in the County.
School Board members are elected by popular vote. The Scheool Board is fiscally dependent
upcn the County because the County approves all debt issuances of the School Board and
provides significant funding o operate the public schools since the School Board does not have
separate taxing powers. The School Board is presented as a governmenial fund type. The
School Board does not issue a separate report.

The Pulaski County Public Service Authority provides water, sewer and garbage service to
County residents. The Public Service Authority is fiscally dependent upon the County because
the County has issued several bonds payable by the Authority. In addition, the County Board of
Supervisors appoints the Board of Directors. A copy of the Public Service Authority's report can
be obtained from the Public Service Authority.

The Pulaski County Industrial Development Authority encourages and provides financing for
industrial development in the County. The Authority is fiscally dependent upon the County. In
addition, the Authority's Board is appointed by the County Board of Supervisors. A copy of the
Industrial Development Authority’s report can be obtained from the Industrial Development
Authority.

Related Organizaiions — The County Board appoinis board members to outside organizations,
but the County’s accountability for these organizations does not extend beyond making the
appeintments.
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COUNTY OF PULASKI, VIRGINIA

Noies to the Financial Statements (Continued)
June 30, 2010

Note 1- Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (continued)

B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements:

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of
activities) report information on all of the nenfiduciary activities of the primary government and its
component units. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these
siatements. Governmental  activities, which normally are supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business type activities, which rely to a
significant extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported
separately from certain legally separate component units for which the primary government is
financially accountable.

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those thai are clearly
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Frogram revenues include 1) charges to
customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges
provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and
other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general
revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and
fiduciary funds, even though the latier are exciuded from the government-wide financial
statements. Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds, if any,
are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation:

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprletary fund and fiduciary

- S - S Y I I Ry T -, I i ﬁi: [L’Elﬁ i: i=—— :f-—at m 37
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COUNTY OF PULASKI, VIRGINIA

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
June 30, 2010

Note 1- Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: {continued)

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation: (continued)

expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and
judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are
all considered io be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the
current fiscal period. Accordingly, real and personal property taxes are recorded as revenues
and receivables when billed, net of allowances for uncollectible amounts. Property taxes not
collecied within 60 days after year-end are reflected as deferred revenues.

| alta a-a '-tiiiki ir’r‘ -?.ja'- y DT QIEEY Ry m'- 'EIFMF?H- rad susnosutaeths renoidos

—

the County, are recognized as revenues and receivables upon collection by the state or utility,
which is generally in the month preceding receipt by the County.

Licenses, permits, fines and rents are recorded as revenues when received. Intergovernmental
revenues, consisting primarily of federal, state and other grants for the purpose of funding specific
expenditures, are recognized when earned or at the time of the specific expenditure. Revenues
from aeneral-purpose aranis are recoanized in the peried to which the arant applies. All other

revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when the government
receives cash.

The County reporis the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the government's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial
resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in other funds.
The general fund includes the activities of the Virginia Public Assistance, Prepaid Taxes,

. Giﬂ"imﬂnﬁlgn C‘Eg"ynr ‘\’) "—ii‘:ii ?]dét‘}"i[ ﬂ’iﬁ".‘ijg—f‘ir '?"i'i‘.ih'ha"‘umir‘i iuﬁ!" ; ——
f i : ! ‘7

Board.



COUNTY OF PULASKI, VIRGINIA

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
June 30, 2010

Note 1- Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (continued)

C.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation: (coniinued)
Additionally, the County reperts the following fund types:

Internal service funds account for the financing of goods and services provided to other
departments or agencies of the government, or to other governments, on a cost reimbursement
basis. The internal service funds consist of the Information Technology, Garage, and
Communications Services internal services fund and the Health Insurance Premiums Fund.

Fiduciary funds account for assets held by the government in a trustee capacity or as agent or
custodian for individuals, private organizations, other governmental units, or other funds. The
Special Welfare, Performance Bond and Employee Benefit Funds are reported as agency funds.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989,
generally are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to
the extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board. Governments also have the option of following subsequent private-
sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same
limitation. The government has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial staterments. Exceptions to this general rule are other charges between the government's
functions. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues
reporied for the varicus functions concerned.

Amounis reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and
contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as
general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operaling items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. Al
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reporied as non-operating revenues and
expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the government's
policy to use restricted resources first, and then unrestricted resources as they are needed.
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COUNTY OF PULASKI, VIRGINIA

Notes io the Financial Staiements (Continued)
June 30, 2010

Note 1- Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (continued)

D.

Assets, liabilities, and net assets or equity:

1

Deposits and investments

The government's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand
deposits, and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the
date of acquisition.

Investments for the government, as well as for its component unit school board, are reported
at fair value. The State Treasurer's Local Government Investment Pool operates in
accordance with appropriate state laws and regulations. The reported value of the pool is the
same as the fair value of the pool shares.

Receivables and payables

Activities between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements
outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred o as either “due toffrom other funds”
(i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or “advances to/from other funds” (i.e., the non-
current portion of interfund loans). All other outstanding balances between funds are
reported as “due to/from other funds.”

Any residual balances ouistanding between the governmental activities and business-type
activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as “internal balances.”

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a fund
balance reserve account in applicable governmental funds to indicate that they are not
available for appropriation and are not expendable available financial resources.

Property Taxes

Property is assessed at its value on January 1. Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien
on property as of January 1 of the following year if they remain unpaid. Real estate taxes are
payable on June 5" and December 5" Personal property taxes are due and collectible
annually on October 15™. The County bilis and collects its own property taxes.

Allowance for Uncollectible Amounts
The County calculates its allowance for uncollectible accounts using historical collection data
and, in certain cases, specific account analysis. The allowance amounted to approximately

$1,043,598 at June 30, 2010 and is comprised solely of real estate taxes delinquent for 20
years and personal property taxes delinquent for 5 years.
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COQUNTY OF PULASKI, VIRGINIA

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
June 30, 2010

Note 1- Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (continued)

D. Assets, liabilities, and net assets or equity; (continued)
5. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accouniing
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those
estimates.

6. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g.,
rads hridoes sidewalks. and similar items) are reported in the applicable acvernmental or

are defined by the government as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000
(amount not rounded) and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are
recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated



COUNTY OF PULASKI, VIRGINIA

Notes to the Financial Staiements {Continued)
June 30, 2010

D. Assets, liabilities, and net assets or equity: (continued)

8. Long-term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the
applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type
Statement of Net Assefs. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are
deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight line method. Bonds
payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs
are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debi.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and
discounts, as well as bond issuances costs, during the current period. The face amount of
debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debi issuances
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other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds
received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

9. Fund Equity

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for
amounts that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for
use for a specific purpose. Designations of fund balance represent tentative management
plans that are subject to change.

10. Net Assetis

Net assets are the difference between assets and liabilities. Net assets in the government-
wide and proprietary financial statements are classified as net assets invested in capital
assets net of related debt; restricted and unresiricted. Net assets are reported as restricted
when there are limitations imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations.

11. Restricted Assets

Included in restricted cash and cash eguivalents are amounts held for construction in the
amouni of $845,219.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
June 30, 2010

Note 2- Reconciliation of Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements:

A

Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and the
government-wide statement of net assets

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance-fotal
governmental funds and net assets-governmental activities as reported in the government-wide
staternent of net assets. One element of that reconciliation explains that long-term liabilities,
including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current pericd and therefore are not
reported in the funds. The details of these $(35,764,086) and $(1,889,374) differences for the
primary government and discretely presented component unit, respectively, are as follows:

Primary Component Unit-
Government School Board
General abligation bonds 5 (16,931,703) % -
General obligation bond premium {323,080) -
Lease revenue note (11,949,704) -

B e e el e

Literary loans (4,125,000) -
Lease purchases (82,732} -
Interest payabie (670,818) -
Landfill post-closure monitoring costs {237,308) -
Net OPEB cbligation {149,929} (366,648)
Compensated absences {728,393) (1,522,726}

Net adjustment to reduce fund balance-total
governmental funds to arrive at net assets-

governmental activities $ (35,764,086) $ {1,889,374)

Remaining portion of this page left blank intentionally
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COUNTY OF PULASKI, VIRGINIA

Notes to the Financial Statements {Continued)
June 30, 2010

Note 2- Reconciliation of Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements: (continued)

B.

Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances and the government-wide statement of activities

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances
includes a reconciliation between net changes in fund balances-fotal governmental funds and
changes in net assets of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of
activities. One element of that reconciliation explains, “Governmental funds report capital outlays
as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over
their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.” The details of these $561,295
and $(1,157,890) differences for the primary government and discretely presented component
unit, respectively, are as follows:

Primary Component Unit-
Government School Board

Capital outlays 3 3,082,028 § 187,909
Capital disposals (684,707) -
Depreciation expenses {1,835,396) (1,345,799)
Net adjustment to increase (decrease) net changes in

fund balances - iofal goveromental funds to arrive at

changes in net assets of governmental activities g 561,925 $% (1,157,880)

Remaining portion of this page left blank intentionally
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Notes to the Financial Statements {Continued)
June 30, 2010

Note 2- Reconciliation of Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements: {continued)

B.

Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances and the government-wide statement of activities
{continued)

Another element of that reconciliation states “the issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases)
provides current financial resources to governmental funds, white the repayment of the principal
of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither
fransaction, however, has any effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds report the efiect of
issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these
amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities.” The details of this $2,053,852
diifference in the primary government, are as follows:

Primary
Government
Debt issued or incurred:
@Q:,‘uq.:ﬂ_*.nﬂn . _ p-Fg ’m_i\t‘ ,
|
General obligation bonds premium (40,136)
Principal payments:
General obligation bonds & 710,088
Lease purchases 221,884
Literary loans 375,000
Lease revenue notes 8,135,148
Landfill post-closure monitoring costs 67,460
Amartization of premium 57,695
Net adjustment to increase (decrease} net changes in fund
balances - total governmental funds to arrive at changes in net
assets of governmental activities % 2,053,852

Remaining portion of this page left blank intentionally



COUNTY OF PULASKI, VIRGINIA

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
June 30, 2010

Note 2- Reconciliation of Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements: (continued)

B. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances and the government-wide statement of activities
(continued)

Another element of that reconciliation states, "Some expenses reported in the statement of
activities do not require the use of current financial resources and therefore are not reported as
expenditures in governmental funds.” The details of these $(211,393) and$16,843 differences for
the primary government and discretely presented component unit, respectively, are as follows:

Primary Com ponent Unit-
Government School Board

(Increase) decrease in compensated absences $ (18,052) & 200,091
(Increase} decrease in net QPEB cbligation (64,429) (183,248)
{Increase} decrease in interest payable (128,812} -
Net adjustment to increase (decrease) net changes

in fund balances - total governmental funds to arrive

at changes in net assets of governmental activities § (211,393) $ 16,843

Note 3- Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability:

A Budgetary Information:

The following procedures are used by the County in establishing the budgetary data reflected in
the financial statements:

1. Prior to April 1%, the Countv Administrator submits to the Board of Supervisors a proposed




COUNTY OF PULASKI, VIRGINIA

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
June 30, 2010

Note 3- Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability: (continued)

A,

C.

Budgetary Information: (continued)

4. The Appropriations Resolution places legal restrictions on expenditures at the functional

level. Only the Board of Supervisors can revise the appropriation for each department or
category. The County Administrator is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts within
general government departments; however, the Schocl Board is authorized to transfer
budgeted amounis within the school system’s subcategories.

Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for
the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds (excepi the School Fund), Debt Service Funds,
and the General Capital Projects Fund. The School Fund and School Capital Projects Fund
are integrated only at the level of legal adoption.

All budgets are adopted on a cash basis.

Appropriations lapse on June 30, for all County units. The County’s practice is to appropriate
Capital Projects by Project. Several supplemental appropriations were necessary during this
fiscal year.

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments
for the expenditure of monies are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable
appropriations, is not part of the County's accounting system.,

Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations:

On the cash basis, the following departments had an excess of expenditures over appropriations
for fiscal year 2010:

Emergency Management, Claytor Lake Celebration, NRY Competitiveness Cenier,
Health Department, NRV Fair, Zoning and Planning, NANO Technology ARRA Match,
RT 100 Improvements, Office of the Principal, Vehicle Maintenance, VPA Board
Administration, and Regicnal Employment Service Grant.

Deficit Fund Equity:

At June 30, 2010, there were no funds that had deficit fund equity.

Note 4- Deposits and Investments:

Denosits:

All cash of the Couniy of Pulaski, Virginia and its discretely presented component units is
maintained in accounts collateralized in accordance with the Virginia Security for Public Deposits
Act, Section 2.2-4400 et. seq. of the Code of Virginia or covered by federal depository insurance.



COUNTY OF PULASKI, VIRGINIA

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
June 30, 2010

Note 4- Deposits and Investments: (continued)

investments:

Statutes authorize local governments and other public bodies to invest in obligations of the United
States or agencies thergof, obligations of the Commonwealth of Virginia or political subdivisions
thereof, obligations of the International Bank of Reconsiruction and Development (World Bank),
the Asian Development Bank, the African Development Bank, "prime quality” commercial paper
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Treasurer's Local Government Investmeni Pool (LGIP).

Custodial Credit Risk: {Invesiments)

The County’'s rated debt investments as of June 30, 2010 were rated by Standard and Poor's

. O B VAL < A s
— ™ 3

Standard and Poor’s rating scale.

County's Rated Debt Investments' Value

Rated Debt Investments Fair Quality Ratings
Aaam A2 AA3
LGIP $ 5,605,919
SNAP 842,219
Multi-fund Securities 500,000
Certificates of Deposit 97,833
Certificates of Deposit 101,682

Conceniration of Credit Risk:

At June 30, 2010, the County did not have any investments meeting the GASB 40 definition
requiring conceniration of credit risk disclosures that exceeded 5% of total investmenis.

Interest Rate Risk:

At June 30, 2010, the County did not have any investments meeting the GASB 40 definition
requiring interest rate risk disclosures.



COUNTY OF PULASKI, VIRGINIA

Notes fo the Financial Statemenis (Continued)
June 30, 2010

Note 5- Due From Other Governmental Units:

The following amounts represent receivables from other governments at year-end:

Primary Component Unit-
Government School Board
Commonw ealth of Virginia:
l.ocal sales tax 5 465,061 % 697,993
Communication sales tax 145,575 -
COther taxes 22,473 -
Categorical aid-shared expenses 246,290 -
Categorical aid-other 79,684 1,809
Categorical aid-VPA funds 188,950 -
Categorical aid-CSA funds 424,595 -
Federal Government:
Categorical aid-VPA funds 197,884 -
Categorical aid-other 347,786 887,002
Totals $ 2,118,288 % 1,586,804

Remaining portion of this page left blank intentionally
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
June 38, 2010

Note 6- Interfund/Component-Unit Obligations:

Fund Due to Due from

Primary Government:

General Fund $ 3,305,395 § 725,420

School Construction Fund

County Construction Fund 313,767 282,740

Internal Service Fund 47,004 -
Component Units:

DA 500,000 313,767

PSA 225,420 322,786

School Fund - 2,836,963

-

Transfers in Transfers out

Primary Governiment:

Construction Fund 1,599,960 3,831
Internal Service Fund 337,765 -
Total % 1,941,556 §% 1,841,556

Details of due from component unit amounts are as follows:

Pulaski County Public Service Authority:

Advances to the Authority amounted to $225,420 at June 30, 2010 as follows:

Initially, a $128,599 advance provided on October 9, 1980, bearing interest at the rate of 5% per annum
and is payable on demand;

The remaining loan balance of $95,821 is an interest free loan receivable in 360 monthly payments of

%] QB2 throunh Otaher 1 ﬂﬁ‘i_bﬁq'gnim.nn Jiv, 11984 then increasipa to $1LATR.in tha fnllreying mnnth
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COUNTY OF PULASKI, VIRGINIA

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

June 30, 2010

Note 7- Long-Term Debt:

Primary Government- Governmental Activity Indebtedness:

Annual requirements o amortize long-term and related interest are as follows:

Year Ending General Obligation Bonds Literary Loans Lease Revenue Note
June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2011 $ 960,028 $ 713,078 $ 375,000 $ 123,750 $ 669,782 $ 559,030
2012 1,005,625 644,474 375,000 112,500 692,423 534,484
2013 1,016,635 604,765 375,000 101,250 727,499 507,493
2014 1,032,883 561,847 375,000 90,000 470,000 480,753
2015 1,049,375 516,308 375,000 78,750 490,000 460,308
2016-2020 5,613,832 1,877,308 1,875,000 225,000 2,805,000 1,938,063
2021-2025 3,696,978 816,308 375,000 11,250 3,590,000 1,146,398
2026-2030 2,424,855 295,713 - - 2,505,000 227,465
2031-2035 48,967 42 953 - - - -
2038-2040 60,163 31,757 - - - -
2041-2045 73,917 18,003 - - - -
2046-2048 48,445 2,929 - - - -
Totals % 16,931,703 § 6,125,943 § 4,125,000 $ 853,994

742,500 3 11,949,704 $ 5

The following is a summary of long-ierm debt iransactions of the County for the year ended June 30,

2010.

General obligation bonds

Literary loans

Lease revenue note

Lease purchase

Unamortized bend premiums

Landfill post-closure monitoring costs
Net OPEB obligation

Compensated absences

Total

3

$

Balance Balance
July 1, 2009 Issuances Retirements June 30, 2010
10,168,504 3 7,473,287 § (710,088} & 16,931,702
4,500,000 - (375,000) 4,125,000
20,084,852 - (8,135,148) 11,849,704
304,616 - (221,884) 82,732
906,058 40,136 {57,695) 888,499
304,768 - (67,460) 237,308
85,500 86,429 (22,000) 149,929
710,341 18,052 - 728,393
37,064,639 § 7,617,904 § (9,589,275) § 35,093,268

-39.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
June 30, 2010

Note 7- Long-Term Debt: {continued)

Details of long-term indebtedness:

Interest Issue Maturity Original Governmental Due Within
Rates Date Date Issue Activities One Year

Generai obligation bonds:

GO bond 4.975-5.85%  11/16/2000 2021 % 754,241 447,063 37,184

VPSA GO bond 2.35-5.1% 111712002 2023 10,915,000 7,085,000 545,000

GO bond 3.78% 4/29/2005 2020 2,000,000 1,582,640 133,571

GO bond 3.175-4.05% 11372010 2030 7,465,000 7,465,000 240,000

GO bond 413% 5/30/2008 2048 352,000 352,000 4,273
Subtotal GO bends 16,931,703 960,028

Unamortized bond premium nfa 117712002 2023 436,841 283,947 21,842

Unarnortized bond premium nfa 141322010 2030 40,136 39,133 1,003
Total GO bonds 17,254,783 982,873
tease revenue note:

IDA lease revenue note 3.5-5.25% 21812007 2027 § 14,000,00C 6,040,000 245,000

School lease revenue note 2.92% 5/2/2008 2013 1,300,000 809,704 259,782

School lease revenue note 5.10% 5/15/2008 2029 5,255,000 5,100,000 165,000
Subtotal lease revenue notes 11,949,704 669,782

Unamortized bond premium n/a 2182007 2027 348,249 251,541 17,412

Unamortized bond premium n/a 5/15/2008 2029 348,754 313,878 17,438
Total l[ease revenue notes 12,515,123 704,832
Literary loans:

State literary fund loan 3%  12/15/2000 2021 % 2,500,000 1,375,000 125,000

State literary fund loan 3%  12/15/2000 2021 5,000,000 2,750,000 250,000
Total literary loans 4,125,000 375,000
Lease purchase agreements:

Capital lease 6.415%  12/20/2000 2011 § 1,240,492 82,732 82,732
Other obligations:

Landfill post-closure

monitoring costs nfa nia n/a n/a 237,308 -

Net OPEB obligation nfa n/a n/a n/a 149,929 -

Compensated absences n/a n/a nia n/a 728,393 72,839
Total other obligations 1,115,630 72,839

Totals 35.093,2_68 2,218,076

40 -




COUNTY OF PULASKI, VIRGINIA

Notes to the Financial Staiements (Continued)
June 30, 2010

Note 8- Long-Term Debt- Component Unit School Board:

Discretely Presented Component Unit- School Board-Indebtedness:

The following is a summary of long-term debt transactions of the Component-Unit School Board for the

year ended June 30, 2010.

Balance Balance
July 1, 2009 Issuances Retirements June 30, 2010
Net OPEB obligation $ 183400 $ 281,848 % (98,600) § 366,648
Compensated absences 1,722,817 - {200,091) 1,522,726
Totat % 1,906.217 $ 281,848 % (298,691) & 1,889,374
Details of Long-Term Indebtedness:
Interest Issue Maturity Original Governmental Due Within
Rates Date Date Issue Activites One Year
Cthewobligations:
Net OPEB obligation nfa nfa nfa nfa 366,648 -
Compensated absences nfa n‘a nfa nfa 1,622,726 152,273
Total other obligations 3 1,889,374 % 152,273

Note 9- Capital L eases:

Primary Government:

The County has entered into a lease agreement to finance the acquisition of the telephone equipment for
the School Board. The lease agreement qualifies as a capital lease for accounting purposes and,
therefore, has been recorded at the present value of the minimum lease payment at the date of inception.

The asset acquired through capital lease is as follows:

Telephone

System
Machinery and equipment $ 1,240,492
Accumulated depreciation (1,181,696)
Net Asset $ 58,796

J41 -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
June 30, 2010

Note 9- Capital Leases: (continued)

The future minimum lease obligation and the net present value of these minimum lease payments as of
June 30, 2010, were as follows:

Year Ending Telephone
June 30, System
2011 3 84,303
Sub-total $ 84,303
Amount representing interest {1,571)
Present value of lease agreement 3 82,732

Note 10- Emplovee Retirement System and Pension Plan:

A Plan Description:

Name of Plan: Virginia Retirement System (VRS)
identification of Plan:  Agent and Cost-Sharing Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan
Administering Entity:  Virginia Retirement System (System)

The County contributes to the Virginia Retirement Systemn (VRS). All full-time, salaried
permanent employees of pariicipating employers must participate in the VRS. Benefits vest after
five years of service. Employees are eligible for an unreduced retirement benefit at age 65 with 5
years of service (age 60 for participating local law enforcement officers, firefighters, and sheriffs)
or at age 50 with at least 30 years of service if elected by the employer (age 50 with at least 25
years of service for participating local law enforcement officers, firefighters, and sherifis) payable
monihly for life in an amount equal to 1.70% of their average final compensation (AFC) for each
year of credited service {1.85% for sheriffs and if the employer elects, for other employees in
hazardous duty positions receiving enhanced benefits). Benefits are actuarially reduced for
retirees who retire prior to becoming eligible for full retirement benefits. [In addition, retirees
qualify for annual cost-of-living adjusiment (COLA) beginning in their second year of retirement.
The COLA is limited to 5.00% per year. AFC is defined as the highest consecutive 36 months of
reported compensation. Participating local law enforcement officers, firefighters, and sheriffs may
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Note 10- Employee Retirement System and Pension Plan: {continued)

B. Funding Policy:

Primary Government:

Plan members are required by Title 51.1 of the Code of Virginia (1950}, as amended, to
contribute 5.00% of their annual salary tc the VRS. This 5.00% member contribution may be
assumed by the employer. In addition, the County of Pulaski, Virginia is required to contribute the
remaining amounts necessary to fund its participation in the VRS using the actuarial basis
specified by the Code of Virginia and approved by the VRS Board of Trustees. The County of
Pulaski, Virginia's coniribution rate for the fiscal year ended 2010 was 7.42% of annual covered
payroll.

Discretely Presented Component Unit- School Board (Non-Professional Employees):

Plan members are required by Title 51.1 of the Code of Virginia (1950), as amended, to
contribute 5.00% of their annual salary io the VRS. This 5.00% member contribution may be
assumed by the employer. In addition, the Pulaski County School Board is required to contribute
the remaining amounts necessary to fund its participation in the VRS using the actuarial basis
specified by the Code of Virginia and approved by the VRS Board of Trustees. The Pulaski
County School Board's coniribution rate for the fiscal year ended 2010 was 6.27% of annual
covered payroll.

C. Annual Pension Cost,
For fiscal year 2010, the County of Pulaski, Virginia's annual pension cost of $682,315 and
$145,695 was equal to the County of Pulaski, Virginia's required and actual contributions for the
County and the School Board Non-Professionals, respectively.

Three-Year Trend information

Annual Percentage Net
Year Ending Pension of APC Pension
June 30, Cost (APCY1) Contributed Obligation
Primary Government:
County 2008 3 607,653 100% & -
2009 675,661 100%
2010 682,315 100%
Component Unit - School Board:
School Board Nen-professional 2008 $ 167,695 100% 3 B
2009 147,739 100% -
2010 145,695 100% -

(1) Excludes member contribution



COUNTY OF PULASKI, VIRGINIA

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
June 30, 2010

Note 10- Emplovee Retirement System and Pension Plan: {continued)

C.

Annual Pension Cost: (continued)

The required contribution was determined as part of the June 30, 2007 actuarial valuation using
the entry age actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions at June 38, 2007 included (a) an
investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses) of 7.50%, (b) projected salary increases
ranging from 3.75% to 5.60% per year for general government employees and 3.50% to 4.75%
for employees eligible for enhanced benefits available to law enforcement officers, firefighters,
and sheriffs, and (c) a cost-of-living adjustment of 2.50% per. Both the investment rate of return
and the projected salary increases include an inflation component of 2.50%. The actuarial value
of the County of Pulaski, Virginia's and Pulaski County Schoo! Board's assets is equal to the
modified market value of assets. This method uses technigues that smooth the effecis of short-
term volatility in the market value of assets over a five-year pericd. The County of Pulaski,
Virginia’s and Pulaski County School Board's unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being
amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on an open basis. The remaining
amortization period at June 30, 2007 was 20 years.

Funded Status and Funding Progress

Primary Government:

As of June 30, 2009, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was 90.52% funded. The
actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $39,100,072, and the actuarial value of assets was
$35,393,462, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $3,706,610. The
covered payroll (annual payroli of active employees covered by the plan) was $9,300,941, and
ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 39.85%.

Discretely Presenied Component Unit - School Beard (Non-Professional Employees):

As of June 30, 2009, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was 91.64% funded. The
actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $8,197,116, and the actuarial value of assets was
$7,511,549, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $685,567. The covered
payrall {annual payrol of aclive employees covered by the plan) was $2,344,318, and ratio of the
UAAL to the covered payroll was 29.24%.

The schedule of funding progress, presented as Required Supplementary Information foliowing
the notes to the financial statements, presents multivear trend information about whether the
actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial
accrued liability (AAL) for benefits.

Discretely Presented Component Unit - School Board {Professional Employees)

Plan Description

The Pulaski County School Board contributes to the Virginia Retirement System (VRS), a cost-
sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the Virginia Retirement
System. VRS provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and

J44 .



COUNTY OF PULASKI, VIRGINIA

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
June 30, 2010

Note 10- Employee Retirement System and Pension Plan: {continued)

E.

Discretely Presented Component Unit — School Board (Professional Employees) (continued)

death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Title 51.1 of the Code of Virginia (1950), as
amended, assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the General
Assembly of Virginia.

The System issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report that includes
financial statements and required supplementary information for VRS. A copy of that report may
be downloaded from their website at hitp//www varetire org/PdifPublications/2009-Annual-
Report.pdf or obtained by writing o the System’s Chief Financial Officer at P.O. Box 2500,
Richmond, VA, 23218-2500.

Funding Policy
Plan members are required by Title 51.1 of the Code of Virginia (1950}, as amended, to

coniribute 5.00% of their annual salary to the VRS, This 5.00% member contribution may be
assumed by the employer. In addition, the School Beard is required to contribute the remaining
amounts necessary to fund its participation in the VRS using the actuarial basis specified by the
Code of Virginia and approved by the VRS Board of Trustees. The School Board's contribution to
the statewide cost sharing pool for professional employees, not including the 5.00% member
contribution, was $1,398,761, $1,887,019, and $2,290,608 for the fiscal years ended 2010, 2009,
and 2008, respectively. Required employer contributions represented 8.81% for July 2009
through March 2010 and 0.00% for April through June 2010, 10.30% and 9.20% of covered
payroll for the fiscal years ended 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Note 11 — Qther Post-Employment Benefits:

A,

Plan Description

The Pulaski Post-Retirement Medical Plan (the Plan) is a single-employer defined benefit
heaithcare plan administered by the County. The Plan provides health insurance benefits to
eligible retirees and their spouses. To be eligible, employees must meet the age and service
criteria for immediate retirement benefits under VRS, which requires that the employee be age 50
with 10 years of service or permanently, totally disabled and injured in the line of duty.
Additionally, the employee must be of full-time status in VRS and must be covered by the active
plan at the time of retirement or disability. The benefit provisions, including employer and
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Notes to the Financial Siatements {Continued)
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Note 11 — Other Post-Employment Benefits: {continued)

B. Funding Policy (continued)

The County establishes employer medical contribution rates for all medical plan participants as
part of the budgetary process each year. The County also determines how the plan will be
funded each year, wheiher it will be partially funded or fully funded in the upcoming fiscal year.

The required contribution is based on projected pay-as-you-go financing requirements, with an
additional amount to prefund benefits as determined annually by the County. For fiscal year 2010,

‘ th unty and School Board contributed $22.000 and $98.800, respecfivelv. for current cos{s of

i

For retirees of both the County and School Board, 100 percent of premiums for both the
employee and spouse are the responsibility of the retiree. Coverage under the plan ceases when
the employee reaches age 85. Premiums under the Plan are shown below:

County School Board
POS PPC Dental POS PPO Dental
Employee Only $ 470 $ 312 $ 23 $ 555 $ 366 $ 27
Employee and Spouse 947 627 38 1,111 740 47
Employee and Child 920 609 43 1,123 732 50
Family 1,319 874 6% 1,662 1,029 83
C. Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

The County's annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB) cost is calculated based on the
annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in
accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding
that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal costs each year and amoriize any
unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years. The
following table shows the components of the County's annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount
actually contributed to the plan, and changes in the County’'s net OPEB obligation:

Remaining portion of this page left blank intentionally

46 -



COUNTY OF PULASKI, VIRGINIA

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
June 30, 2010

Note 11-Other Postemployment Benefits: (continued)

C. Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation (Continued)

School
County Board Total
Annual required contribution $107,500 $282,000 § 389,500
Interest on net OPEB obligation 3,420 7,336 10,756
Adjustment to annual required contribution {24 491) (7.488) (31,979)
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 88,429 281,848 368,277
Actual contributions (22,000) (98,600) (120,600)
Increase in net OPEB obligation 64,429 183,248 247 677
Net OPEB obligation - beginning of year 85,500 183,400 268,900
Net OPEB obligation - end of year $149929 §$366648 § 518,577

The County’'s and School Board's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost
contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB obligation were as follows:

Percentage of

Fiscal Annual Annual OPEB Cost Net OPEB
Year Ended OPEB Cost Contributed Obligation
6/30/2009 % 389,500 31% $ 268,000
6/30/2010 368,277 33% 516,577
D. Funded Status and Funding Progress

The funded status of the Plan (County and School Board combined) as of July 1, 2008, the most
recent actuarial report, was as follows:

County School Board Total
Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) $ 909,733 § 3,023,800 § 3,933,533
Actuarial value of plan assets - - -
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL} $ 909,733 § 3,023,800 $ 3,933,533
Funded ratio (actuarial vatue of plan assets/AAL) 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Covered payroll {aclive ptan members) $ 5744151 § 2303927 § 8,048,078
o aoale e ©f wor el e h D 4 e AL

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts
determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the
employer are subject to continual revision as actual resulis are compared with past expectations
and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as
required supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements, presents
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Note 11-Other Postemployment Benefits: (continued)

D.

Funded Status and Funding Progress (continued)

multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or
decreasing cver time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan and
include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of
sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial
methods and assumptions used include, techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of
short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with
the long-term perspective of the calcuations.

in the July 1, 2008, actuariai valuation, the entry age actuarial cost method was used. The
actuarial assumptions included a 4.5 percent investment rate of return per annum. An annual
healthcare cost trend rate of 10 percent initially, reduced by decrements of 0.5 percent until an
ultimate rate of 5 percent is reached. Dental costs are assumed to increase 5 percent initially,
decreasing by 0.5 percent yearly until and ultimate rate of 3 percent is reached. The UAAL is
being amortized as a level percentage over the remaining amortization period, which at June 30,
2010, was 29 years.

Note 12-VRS Health Insurance Credit — Other Postemployment Benefits:

A

Plan Description

The County and School Board participate in the Health Insurance Credit Program, a plan
designed to assist retirees with the cost of health insurance coverage. This program is an agent
and cost sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit plan administered by the Virginia Retirement

Systapr JRS). The Mipninig (aneral_faserahiv_estahlishes, the dnllgr_grmoyn. of the heqith

insurance credit for each year of creditable service. The credit amount and eligibility differs for
state, school division, political subdivision, local officer, local social services department and
general registrar refirees.

An employee of the County or School Board, who retires under VRS with at least 15 years of total
creditable service under the System and is enrclled in a health insurance plan, is eligible to
receive a monthly health insurance credit of $1.50 per year of creditable service up to a maximum
monthly credit of $45. However, such credit shall not exceed the health insurance premium for
the retiree. Disabled retirees automatically receive the maximum monthly health insurance credit
of $45.

Benefit provisions and eligibility requirements are established by Title 51.1, Chapter 14 of the
Code of Virginia. The VRS actuarially determines the amount necessary to fund all credits
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Note 12-VRS Health Insurance Credit — Other Postemployment Benefits: (continued)

A

Plan Description {continued)

provided, reflects the cost of such credits in the applicable employer contribution rate pursuant to
§51.1-145, and prescribes such terms and conditions as are necessary to carry out the provisions
of the health insurance credit program. VRS issues separate financial statements as previousty
discussed in Note 10.

Funding Policy

As a participating local political subdivision, the County and School Board are required fo
contribute the entire amount necessary to fund participation in the program using the actuarial
basis specified by the Code of Virginia and the VRS Board of Trustees. The County and School
Board’s contribution rates were 0.23% and 1.04% of covered payroll, respectively.

QOPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

The annual cost of OPEB under Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 45,
Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other than
Pensions, is based on the annual required contribution (ARC). The locality is reguired to
contribute the ARC, an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of
GASB Statement 45. The ARC represenis a level of funding that, if paid on an angoing basis, is
projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or
funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years.

For 2010, the County's contribution of $21,150 and the School Board's contribution of $24,166
were equal io the ARC and OPEB cost. The County and School Board’'s annual OPEB cost, the
percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB obligation for 2010
are as follows:

Annual Percentage Net
OPEB Cost of ARC OPEB
Fiscal Year Ending (ARC) Contributed Obligation
County:
June 30,2010 § 21,150 100% -
School Board:
June 30,2010 3 24,166 100% -
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Note 12-VRS Health Insurance Credit — Other Postemployment Benefits: (continued)

D. Funded Status and Funding Progress

The funded status of the plan as of June 30, 2008, the most recent actuarial valuation date, is as

follows:

County School Board
Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) S 180,365 $ 87,041
Actuarial value of plan assets g 89,355 % -
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) $ 101,010 % 87,041
Funded ratio (actuarial value of plan assets/AAL) 46.94% 0.00%
Covered payroll (active plan members) 3 9,300,941 % 2,344,318
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll 1.09% 3.71%

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of evenis far into the future and reflect a long-
term perspective. Examples include assumptions about fuiure employment, mortality, and the
healthcare cost frend. Amounts determined regarding the funded staius of the plan and the
annual required coniributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results
are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the fuiure.

The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following the
notes to the financial staiemenis presents multi-year trend information aboui whether the
actuarial value of plan asseis is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial
accrued liability for benefits. The projection of benefits for financial reporting purposes does not
explicitly incorporate the potential effects of legal or contractual funding limitations.

E. Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the
B O ITGE 2 2 1 Gl % £ 3 e e pannl onnso S il e gyt

[

provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs
between the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions
used included techniques that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued
liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the
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Note 12-VRS Health Insurance Credit — Other Postemployment Benefits: {continued)
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retirees with the cost of health insurance coverage. This program is a cost sharing, multiple-
employer defined benefit plan administered by the Virginia Retirement System (VRS). The
Virginia General Assembly estahlishes the dollar amount of the health insurance credit for each
year of creditable service.

A teacher, who retires under VRS with at least 15 years of total creditable service under the
System and is enrolled in a health insurance plan, is eligible to receive a monthly health
insurance credit of $4 per year of creditable service. However, such credit shall nokexceed the
health insurance premium for the retiree. Disabled retirees automatically receive a monthly
health insurance credit of $4 multiplied by the smaller of (i) twice the amount of their creditable
service or (ii) the amount of creditable service they would have completed at age 60 if they had
remained in service to that age.

The School Board is required to coniribute, at an actuarially determined rate, the entire amount
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Note 13- Capital Asseis:

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2010 was as follows:

Primary Government:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Governmental Activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $ 2219420 3 215,300 % -3 2,434,720
Construction in progress 19,776,182 1,908,853 {138,959) 21,546,076

Total capital assets not being

2y reaintad & M#LVBIEH Mﬁ,ﬁ?&éﬁ“ﬂﬁii ii_

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and systems $ 31,090,111 & 479,340 §$ (68,061) $ 31,501,390
Machinery and equipment 10,387,826 617 494 (616,648) 10,388,674

Total capital assets being depreciated $ 41,477,937 % 1,096,834 3 (684,707) % 41,890,064

Accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings and systems $ (7.878,011) % (833,266) % - % (8,711,277)
Machinery and equipment (7,444,351) {1,002,130) - {8,4456,481)
Total accumulated depreciation 3 (15,322,362) $ (1,835,396) % - % (17,157,758)

Total capital assets being

depreciated, net 3 26,155,575 §% (738,562) % (684,707) 3 24,732,306

Governmental activities capital

assets, net $ 48,161,177 § 1,385,591 & (823,666) $ 48,713,102

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:
Governmental activities:

QnyigrgnEr ot ¢ L  ——
Judicial administration 12,325 |
Public safety 794,975
Public works 156,462
Health and welfare 63,753
Education 680,000
Parks, recreation and cultural 96,069

Cramrmii iy Aevialanment 28 MNE
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Note 13- Capital Assets: (continued)

Capital asset activity for the School Board for the year ended June 30, 2010 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Governmental Activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $ 584,527 § - 8 - % 564,527
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and improverments $ 18,302,722 § -3 -5 18,302,722
Machinery and equipment 6,033,689 187,909 - 6,221,598
Total capital assets being depreciated 5 24,336,411 § 187,909 § -3 24 524,320
Accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements $ {14,678,177) (819,141) % - % {15,497,318)
Machinery and equipment (3,770,370) {526,659} - (4,297,029)
Total accurutated depreciation $ (18,448,547) $  (1,345,800) % - 8 (19,794,347)
Total capital assets being
depreciated, net $ 5887864 $ (1,157,891) § - % 4,729,873
Governmental activities capital
assets, net 5 6,452,391 $ (1,157,891) % - % 5,294,500

Note 14- Risk Management:

The County and its component unit- School Board are exposed to various risks of loss related to torts,
theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters. The County
and its component unit- School Board participate with other localities in a public entity risk pool for their
coverage of general liability and auto insurance with the Virginia Association of Counties (VACO). Each
member of this risk pool jointly and severally agrees to assume, pay and discharge any liability. The
County and its component unit- School Board pay the VACO contributions and assessments based upon
classification and rates into a designated cash reserve fund out of which expenses of the pool, claims and
awards are to be paid. In the event of a loss, deficit or depletion of all available excess insurance, the
pool may assess all members in the proportion in which the premium of each bears to the total premiums
of all members in the year in which such deficit occurs. The County and its component unit- School
Board continue to carry commercial insurance for ali other risks of loss. Settled claims resulting from
these risks have not exceeded commercial coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

.53-
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Note 15- Contingent Liabilities:

Federal programs in which the County and its component units participate were audited in accerdance
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Note 17- Designhated and Reserved Fund Balances/Restricted Net Assets:

Primary Component Unit-
Government School Board

Total Fund Balance 3 26,313,647 892,799
Designated fund balances:

Various capital projects $ 3,828,263 -

School fund carry-over 363,173 -

General fund carry-overs 175,932 -

Governot's School - 58,301

Food service - 363,918
Reserved fund balances:

School construction 845,219 -

SheriffflCommonwealth attorney seized assets 15,802 -
Total designated/reserved fund balances $ 5,328,489 § 422,219

tndesignated (deficit) fund balances $ 20,985,158 % 470,580
Restricted net assets:

School construction $ 845219 3% -

SherifffCommonwealth attorney seized assets 15,902 -
Total restricted net assets ] 861,121 3 -

Note 18- Landfill Liability:

State and federal laws and regulations require the County to place a final cover on its landfill site when it
stops accepting waste and to perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the site for thirty
years after closure. The County closed its landfill at Cloyd's Mountain in 1989. At June 30, 2010, the
total post-closure care liability (which represents the 8 years remaining) was $237,308 representing what
it would cost to perform all post-closure care in fiscal year 2010. Actual costs for both post-closure
monitoring may change due to inflation, deflation, changes in technology, or changes in regulations. The
County demonstrated financial assurance requirements for closure, post-closure care through the
submission of a Local Government Financial Test to the Virginia Depariment of environmental Quality in
accordance with section 8VA C20-70 of the Virginia Adminisirative Code.

=
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Note 19 -~ Deferred Revenue:

Deferred revenue represents amounts for which asset recognition criteria have been met, but for which
revenue recognition criteria have not been met. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, such
amounts are measurable, but not available. Unearned revenue totaling $1,977,241 is comprised of the
following:

Prepaid Property Taxes - Property taxes due subsequent to June 30, 2010, but paid in advance by the
taxpayers totaled $200,883 at June 30, 2010.

Property Taxes Receivable ~ Taxes billed and not due until after June 30, 2010, less amounts received
60 days after the period end totaled $1,776,358 at June 30, 2010.

Note 20 — Restatement of Beginning Balances

Primary
Government
Beginning net assets, as previously reported $ 37,613,245
Increase in interest payable (83,594)
Increase in gross capital asseis 140,023
Increase in accumulated depreciation {56,541)
Increase in GO bonds (343,713)
Beginning net assets, as restated 5 37,269,420
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County of Pulaski, Virginia

General Fund

Exhibit 11

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

E"i{fl".l A

Budget Amounts

Qriginal

Final

Actual
Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget

Pos (Neqa}

“‘—“‘ﬁ_

Other Local Taxes
Permits, Privilege Fees and Regulatory Licenses
Fines and Forfeitures
Revenue from Use of Money and Property
Charges for Services
Miscellaneous
Recovered Costs
Intergovernmental Revenues:
Commonwealth
Federal Governmeni
Totat Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current;
General Government Administration
Judicial Administration
Public Safety
Public Works
Health and Welfare
Education
Parks, Recreation and Culturat
Community Development
Debt Servige:
Principal Retirement
Interast and Other Fiscal Charges
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over {Under)

Eyoendifues - § 2785138 §  (6.825182) %

5,438,000 5,438,000 5,171,842 (266,158}
837,000 649,500 664,789 15,289

37,900 37,900 31,439 (6,461}
140,000 140,000 293,324 153,324

514,600 519,323 516,557 (2,726)

556,323 268,611 117,026 (1561,585)
431,153 556,903 659,594 102,691
9,998,879 11,072,512 11,319,231 246,718

4,347,709 10,526,524 7,004,700 {3.521,824)

$ 41,706,050 % 49,149,512 46,614,652 % {2,534,860)
] 1,984,226 §$ 2,145,667 1944756 § 200,911
1,664,776 1,673,734 1,547,625 126,109
7,251,165 7,778,171 7,240,425 538,746
1,363,496 1,469,347 1,408,091 61,256
10,740,939 12,058,031 11,092,709 965,322
10,834,087 11,221,077 10,288,286 932,791
1,219,359 1,382,397 1,309,393 73,004
499,010 6,372,350 4,612,962 1,759,388
1,707,119 9,442 120 9,442,120 -
1,756,735 2,430,800 1,690,316 840,484
3 38,920,912 % 55,974,694 50,476,683 $ 5,498,011
{ &?ﬁ&iﬁﬂ] $ 2,963,151
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Exhibit 12

Primary Government: County Retirement Plan

Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded Funded Ratio Annual UAAL as a
Valuation Value of Accrued AAL {UAAL) Assets as % Covered % of Covered
as of Assets Liability {AAL) (3)-(2} of AAL (2)/(3) Payroll Payroll {4)}/(8)
] @ €} {4) )] (8) (7}
June 30, 2008 $ 35,393,462 § 39,100,072 § 3,708,610 90.52% % 9,300,941 39.85%
June 30, 2008 35,289,295 37,278,156 1,888,861 94.66% 8,975,238 22.16%
June 30, 2007 32,314,708 34,008,650 1,691,942 95.02% 8,256,132 20.50%

A I

School Beard Non-professional Retirement Plan

Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded Funded Ratio Annual UAAL as a
Valuation Value of Accrued AAL {LUAAL)Y Assets as % Covered % of Covered
as of Assets Liability (AAL) {3)-(2)} of AAL (2)/(3} Payroll Payroll (4)/(6)
(1) (2} (3) 4 (5} (€} M
June 30, 2009 § 7.511,549 3 8,197,116 § 685,567 91.64% § 2,344,318 29.24%
dune 30, 2008 7,666,271 7,742,300 173,028 97.77% 2,303,927 7.51%
June 30, 2007 6,923,881 7,332,902 409,021 94.42% 2,192,595 18.65%
Primary Government: Post-Retirement Medical Plan
Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded AAL Funded Ratio Annual UAAL as a
Valuation Value of Accrued (UAAL) Assets as % Covered % of Covered
Date Assets Liability (AAL) (3) - (2} of AAL (2) 1 (3) Payrolt Payrolt (4} / {6)
4] 2 )] ) (5) {8 M
July 1, 2008 3 - % 909,733 $ 909,733 0.00% $ 5,744,154 15.84%
School Board: Post-Retirement Medical Plan
Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded AAL Funded Ratio Annual UAAL as a
Valuation Value of Accrued (UAALY Assets as % Covered % of Covered
Date Assets Liability (AAL) (3} - (2) of AAL (2) / (3} Payroll Payroll (4) / (6)
(1} @ (3 4 ) (&) (7)
July 1, 2008 $ - $ 3,023,800 g 3,022,800 0.00% $ 2,303,927 131.25%
Primary Government: Virginia Retirement System - Health Insurance Credit:
Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded AAL Funded Ratio Annual UAAL as a
Valuation Value of Accrued (UAAL) Assets as % Covered % of Covered
Date Assets Liability (AAL) (3) - (2) of AAL {2) 7 (3) Payroil Payroll (4) / {6}
Q] (2} (3) (4) {5) {8) N
June 30, 2009 $ 88,355 $ 180,365 $ 101,010 46.,94% $ 5,300,941 1.09%
School Board: Virginia Retirement system - Health Insurance Credit
Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded AAL Funded Ratio Annual UAAL as a
Valuation Value of Accrued {UAAL) Assets as % Covered % of Covered
Date Assets Liability (AAL) {3} - (2) of AAL {2) / (3} Payroll Payroli (4) / (6)
4] 2) 3 4 (5) (6) (7
June 30, 2009 5 - $ §7,041 5 87,041 0.00% $ 2,344,318 3.71%
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County of Pulaski, Virginia
Major Capital Projects Fund-School Construction Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Exhibit 13

REVENUES
Revenue from Use of Money and Property
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Capital Projects

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures

Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance - Beginning
Fund Balance - Ending

Budget Amounts Variance with

Actual Final Budget

Criginal Final Amounts Pos (Neq)
5 & 1% 3903 % 3,902
~ 2,287,544 - (2,287 544)
$ $ 2,287,545 % 3903 § (2,283,642)
3 3 2,287,545 % 685,058 % 1,602,487
3 $ 2,287,545 § 685,058 3 1,602,487
3 - $ - 3 (681,155) & (681,155)
¥ - $ - % (681,155) & (681,155)
- - 1,134,843 1,134,943
$ - $ - % 453,788 § 453,788
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Non-Major Capital Projects Fund-County CIP Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

County of Pulaski, Virginia

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Exhibit 14

REVENUES
Miscellaneous
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General Government Administration
Public Safety
Health and Welfare
Education
Parks, Recreation and Cultural
Community Development
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers In
Transfers Qut
Issuance of debt
Total Other Financing Sources (Usas)

Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance - Beginning
Fund Balange - Ending

Budget Amounts Variance with

Actual Final Budget

Original Final Amounts Pos {(Neq)
3 - $ 427257 % 91604 § {335,653}
$ - 3 427,257 % 91,604 § (335,853)
$ 45000 % 302,743 & 38,0068 $ 264,647
320,000 546,188 130,310 415,878
- 80,453 100,179 (19,726)

493,345 570,445 381,150 189,295

- 483,500 87,663 395,837

253,000 3,571,985 958,622 2,613,363

$ 1,111,345 % 5555314 % 1,696,020 § 3,859,204
5 (1,111,345 § (5,128,057) § (1,604,416) $ 3,523,641
$ 1,111,345 § 5074879 § 1,589,960 $ (3.474,919)
- - (3,831) (3.831)

- - 8,287 8,287
$ 1,111,345 § 5074879 % 1,604,416 % (3,470,463)
& - $ (53,178) §$ - $ 53,178
$ - 3 {53,178} $ - 8 53,178

60 -



Exhibit 15
County of Pulaski, Virginia
Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2010

Agency Funds
Employee Sales

Fﬂfmi:l Dn_rfﬂga;.\ﬂr_a E!pvihln T ﬂv

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 20,800 3 42456 % 78783 & - 5 142,039
Total Assets $ 20,800 % 42,458 % 78,783 § - % 142,039
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounis Payable $ - 8 3923 3 - § - 3 3,923

Amounis Heid for Others:
Social Services Clients 20,800 % 20,800

ﬁ”‘“‘““’ E l ol £’i° 20 i:

County Employees - - 78,783 - 78,783
Total amounts held for others % 20800 § 38,533 % 78783 % - 8 138,116
Total Liabilities 5 20800 % 42456 3 78,783 & - % 142,039




Exhibit 16
County of Pulaski, Virginia
Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2010

Batance Balance
Juiy 1, 2009 Additions Deletions June 30, 2010
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Special Welfare Fund 5 27211 % 61,358 % 87,769 3 20,800
Performance Bond Fund 37,529 10,927 6,000 42 A5G
Employee Flexible Benefits Fund 83,705 89.243 94,165 78,783
Total cash and cash equivalents $ 148,445 § 161,528 § 167,934 § 142,039
Due from Other Governmental Units:
Local Sales Tax Fund $ - % 549,850 % 549,850 3 -
Total Assets $ 148,445 $ 711,378 § 717,784 3 142,039
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Performance Bond Fund $ - % 3,923 % - 3 3,923
Due to Other Governmental Units:
Local Sales Tax Fund $ - 3 549850 $ 549850 §$ -

. I}I'Ig“ﬁﬂ#ﬁ‘ "]n*hﬁrﬂ—

g Y -
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Performance Bond Fund 37,529 7,004 6,00C 38,533
Employee Flexible Benefits Fund 83,705 89.243 94,165 78,783
Total amounts held for others $ 148,445 § 157,605 $ 167,934 § 138,116

Total Liabilities 3 148,445 5 711,378 % 717,784 § 142,039




DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT- SCHOOL BOARD

MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUND

School Operating Fund - The School Operating Fund is a special revenue
fund that accounts for the operations of the County’s school system.
Financing is provided by the State and Federal governments as well as
contributions from the General Fund of the County. The Cafeteria and
Governor's School Funds have been merged for reporting purposes.
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County of Pulaski, Virginia

Exhibit 17

Special Revenue Fund - Discretely Presented Component Unit - School Board

Balance Sheet
June 30, 2010

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Due from Primary Government

Due from Other Governmental Units
Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Contracts Payable
Total Liabililies

Fund Balances:
Unreserved:
Designated
Undesignated {deficit)
Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statemant of Net Assets (Exhibit 1)

are different because:

Total fund balances - per above

Capital assets used in governmental activiies are not financial resources and,

therefore, are not reported in the funds.

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current

period and therefore, are not reported in the funds

Net assets of governmental activities - component unit school board

-84 -

School

Fund
$ 461,781
2,836,963
1,586,804
3 4,885,548
$ 252,706
3,740,043
5 3,992,749
b 422,219
470,580
$ 892,799
3 4 885,548
$ 892,799
5,294,500
{1,889,374)
3 4,297,925




Exhibit 18
County of Pulaski, Virginia
Special Revenue Fund-Discretely Presented Component Unit-School Board
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

School
Fund

REVENUES
Revenue from Use of Money and Property 5 18,218
Charges for Services 1,012,222
Miscellaneous 13,718
Recovered Costs 1,288,098
Intergovernmental Revenues:

Local Government 10,272,595

Commonwealth 25,589,006

Federal Government 9,020,299

Total Revenues S 472147246
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Education $ 47,246,776
Total Expenditures 3 47,246,778
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under)

Expenditures 3 (32,530)
Net Change in Fund Balance $ (32,530}
Fund Balance - Beginning 925,329
Fund Balance - Ending $ 892,799
Amounts reparted for governmentat activities in the Statement of Activities (Exhibit 2)

are different because:
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Major Special Revenue Fund-Discretely Presented Component Unit-School Board

County of Pulaski, Virginia

Exhibit 19

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

REVENUES
Revenue from Use of Money and Property
Charges for Services
Miscellaneous
Recovered Cosis
Intergovernmental Revenues:

Local Government

Commoenwealth

Federal Government

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Education
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency} of Revenues Qver (Under)
Expenditures

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance - Beginning
Fund Balance - Ending

Budget Amounts Variance with

Actual Final Budget

Qriginal Final Amounts Pos {Nea)
$ 15,000 $ 15,000 % 18,218 § 3,218
1,235,759 1,208,039 1,012,222 {283,817)
5,000 13,718 13,718 -
836,450 1,265,958 1,288,098 22,100
10,818,386 11,197,540 10,272,595 (924,945)
28,076,235 26,623,157 25,589,096 (1,034,061}
6,954,564 12,166,500 9,020,298 (3,146,201}
3 47,981,404 % 52577852 % 47,214,246 § (5,363,706}
3 47,730,333 § 52 577,952 % 47,246,776 % 5,331,176
b 47,730,333 § 52,677,952 § 47,246,776 % 5,331,176
b 251,071 % -3 (32,530) $ (32,530)
$ 251,071 % - 5 {32,530) $ (32,530)
- - 925,329 925,328
3 2561071 % - % 892,799 3§ 892,799
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Schedule 1
Page 1 of 5

County of Pulaski, Virginia
Schedule of Revenues-Budget and Actual
Governmental Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Variance with

Original Final Final Budget-
Fund, Major and Minor Revenue Source Budget Budnet Actual Pos (Meq)
Primary Government:
General Fund:
Revenue frem Local Sources:
PR Rl & VR
Reazl property laxes 5 12,084,200 § 12,084,200 § 13,388,344 § 404,144
Real and personal public service corporation laxes 750,000 750,000 733,128 (16,872}
Personal property taxes 3,184,286 3,378,353 3,615,844 237,491
Mcbile home taxes 46,000 46,000 32,551 (13,449)
Machinery and tools laxes 2,350,000 2,491,688 2,752,538 260,852
Merchant's capitai {axes - - 1,774 1,774
Penalties 162,000 162,000 161,965 (35)
Interest 118,000 118,000 142,680 24,680
Collection fees 10,000 10,000 7,286 {2714
Total General Property Taxes $ 19,604 486 % 19,940,239 § 20,836,110 § 895 871
Other Local Taxes:
Local sales and use taxes $ 2,610,000 § 2,610,000 $ 2,337,001 § (272,808)
Caonsumers' ulility taxes 650,000 650,000 662,719 12,719
Consumgption taxes 98,000 98,000 103,420 5,420
Molor vehicle licensaes 480,000 480,000 536,856 56,856
Bank stock {axes 20,000 20,000 34,244 14,244
Taxes on recordation and wills 280,000 280,000 159,002 (120,998)
Hotel and motel room taxes 300,000 300,000 273,517 {26,483)
Restaurant food taxes 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,064,993 64,993
Total Other Local Taxes 5 5,438,000 § 5,438,000 $ 5,171,842 § (266,158)
Permits, Privilege Fees and Regulatory Licenses:
Animal licenses s 15000 § 15,000 3 26,996 § 11,998
Business licenses 520,000 520,000 541,935 21,935
Land use application feas 1,000 1,000 583 417}
Transfer fees 2,500 2,500 1,027 (1.473)
Zoning and subdivision permits 2,500 2,500 5,864 3,364
Eresion and sediryent control parmits 2,500 2,500 1,200 (1,300}
Building permits 93,500 106,000 87.184 {18,818)
Total Permits, Privilege Fees and Regulatory Licenses 3 637,000 § 540,500 % 664,789 B 15,289
Fines and Forfeitures:
Court fines and forfeitures $ 34,900 % 34,800 % 29,093 3 (5,807)
Interest on local fines 3,080 3,000 2,346 (654)
Tetal Fines and Forfeituras $ 37,900 % 37,600 3% 31,439 % (6,461)
Revenue from Use of Money and Property:
Revenue from use of money 3 120,000 § 120,000 § 274,822 3§ 154,822
Revenue from use of property 20,000 20,000 18,502 (1,498)
Total Revenue from Use of Money and Property 3 140,000 % 140,000 § 203324 § 153,324
Charges for Services:
Charges for clerk copies 3 6,805 $ 7.005 § 7223 % 218
Excess fees of Clerk 7.000 7,000 - (7.000)
Charges for courthouse maintenance 28,000 28,000 17,479 (10,821)
Charges for courthouse security 80,000 80,000 68,616 {11,384)
Fees of Sheriff 2,400 2,400 2,449 49
Share of seized property . 2163 2,163 -
Charges for Commonwazlth's Attorney 2,000 2,000 2,300 300
Miscelianeous jail and inmate fees 4,100 4,100 4772 672
Concealed handgun permits 3,030 3,030 5,885 2,858
Szale of maps and publications 3,140 3,140 393 (2,747)
Town tax book preparation 470 470 470 -
Charges for parks and recreation 313,617 313,617 326,510 12,893
Charges for animai pound 8,430 8,430 9,922 1,492
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Schedule 1
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County of Pulaski, Virginia
Schedule of Revenues-Budget and Actual
Governmentai Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Variance with

Original Final Final Budget-
Fund, Major and Minor Revenue Source Budget Budget Actual Pos (Neg)
General Fund: (continued)
Revenue from Local Sources: {continued)
Charges for Services: {continued)
Charges for landfill $ 33,000 § 33,000 $ 40,145 $ 7.145
Charges for library 22,508 24,968 28,570 3,602
Total Charges for Services 3 514,600 § 510,323 § 516,607 % (2,726)
Miscellaneous:
Miscellaneous § 556,323 $ 268,611 § 117,026 % {151,585)
Recovered Costs:
Administrative fees 5 63,000 $ 73,000 § 80,228 § 17,225
Airport recoveries 161,592 164,171 144,028 (20,142)
Juror costs 6,500 6,500 10,200 3,700
Circuit court secretary 12,250 12,788 12,788 -
Town reimbursement-fire works 5,000 5,000 16,020 11,020
CSA recoveries 10,000 10,000 122,230 112,230
Insurance recoveries - 18,102 19,567 1,465
Parks and recreation - 25,006 40,868 15,862
Public safety recoveries 156,811 222811 179,280 (43,521)
Health department recoveries 5,500 8,500 12,000 5,500
Welfare recoveries 6,000 6,000 9,341 3,341
Hazardous material response 3,500 7.025 3,036 (3,988}
Total Recovered Costs $ 431,153 % 556,903 % 559,604 $ 102,691
Total Revenue from Local Sources $ 27,369,462 § 27,550,476 % 28,290,721 % 740,245
Intergcvernmental Revenues:
Revenue from the Commonwealth:
Non-categorical Aid:
Motor vehicle carriers' tax $ 37412 § 7412 % 805 § (36,6086)
Mobile home titling tax 56,559 56,559 40,317 (16,242)
Motor vehicle rental tax 30,000 30,000 25,890 4,110
Grantor's tax 120,653 120,653 27,563 (93,100)
State recordation lax - - 65,299 55,299
Telecommunication taxes 518,000 918,000 862,535 (55,465)
Personal property 1ax relief funds 1,594,000 1,594,000 1,584,529 529
Total Non-categorical Aid $ 2,756,624 § 2,756,624 § 2,616,929 § {139,695)
Categorical Aid:
Shared Expenses:
Commonwealth's Attorney 8 582,646 % 625,733 § 563,476 % (62,257)
Sheriff 1,760,448 1,862,997 1,605,122 (257,875)
Commissioner of the Revenue 146,510 154,208 136,417 (17.791)
Treasurer 128,464 132,900 117,858 (15,042)
Medical Examiner 1,800 1,800 - {1,800)
Registrar/Electoral Board 57,161 66,077 47 787 (18,290)
Clerk of the Circuit Court 333,468 357,568 321,423 (36,145)
Funds returned t¢ Commonwealth - (220,233) (220,223) 10
Total Shared Expenses 5 3,020,497 § 2,981,050 & 2,571,860 & (409,190)
Other Categorical Aid:
Public assistance and welfare administration $ 585499 § 1,035,499 & 2421707 § 1,386,208
Comprehensive Services Act [CSA) 2,402,800 3,041,285 2,697,356 (343,929)
Victim's assistance grant 110,774 120,405 30,101 (20,304)
Litter contro! grant 12,828 12,829 10,367 {2,462)
DMV animal friendly plates 500 500 585 85
Library grant 133,625 133,625 134,833 1,208
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County of Pulaski, Virginia
Schedule of Revenues-Budget and Actual
Governmental Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Variance with

Original Final Final Budget-
Eund, Major and Minor Revenue Source Budget Budget Actual Pas {Neg)
General Fund: (continued)
Intergovernmental Revenues: {conlinued)
Revenue from the Commonwealth: {continuad)
Categorical Aid: (continued)
Other Calegorical Aid: (conlinuad)
Pretrial services grant $ 696,180 § 795,416 $ 855240 § (140,176)
Records preservation grant - - 4,993 4,993
Commission on the arts 5,000 5,000 5,425 425
Fire programs 63,500 73,228 73,228 -
Virginia Juvenile Commission Crime Controi 29,051 29,051 27,598 {1,453)
Domestic violence DCJS grant 40,000 40,000 30,000 (10,000)
Public safety answer grant 42,000 42,000 37,165 (4,835)
DEQ grant - - 1,844 1,844
VA Tourism Corp Grants - 5,000 - (6,000)
Tetal Other Categorical Aid ] 4221758 § 5,334,838 § 6,130,442 § 795,604

Y
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Revenue from the Federal Government:
Nan-categorical Aid:

Payment in lieu of taxes 3 12,000 $ 12,000 % 14,356 8 2,359
Categorical Aid:
Public assistance and welfare administration 3 4335709 $ 4591055 % 3,047,361 & (1,543,664)
CDBG grants - 225,000 57,107 (167,893)
Emergency management preparedness grant - 31,943 31,204 {739)
Sate and community highway safety - 18,484 11,326 (7,138)
Citizen's alerting grant - 13,000 6,500 (6,500)
Hazardous materials plan update - 3,500 3,500 -
USDA rural development central utilities grant - 5,584,746 3,600,197 {1,084,549)
Office of Justice Byrnes grant - ARRA - 21,8185 21,818 -
Fire department grant - ARRA - 25,000 25,000 -
Victim wilness - - 90,304 90,304
JAG funding - - 95,806 95,996
Totai Categorical Aid 3 4,335,709 § 10,514,524 % 6,000,341 § (3,524,183)
Total Revenue from the Federal Government 3 4,347,709 § 10,526,524 § 7.004.700 $ {3,521,824)
Total General Fund 5 441,706,050 $ 49,148,512 § 45,514,652 § (2,534,860}

Major Capital Projects Fund:
Schoo! Construction Fund;
Revenue from Use of Money and Propenty:
Revenue from use of money 3 1% 135 3,003 3 3,902

Miscellaneous:
Miscellaneous 3 - 5 2,287,544 § - &8 (2,287,544)




County of Pulaski, Virginia
Schedule of Revenues-Budget and Actual
Governmental Funds
For the Fisca! Year Ended June 30, 2010

Schedule 1
Page 4 of 5

Fund, Major and Minor Revenue Source

Discretely Presented Component Unit-School Board:

Major Special Revenue Fund:
School Operating Fund:
Revenue from Local Scurces:
Revenue from Use of Money and Property:
Revenue from use of money
Revenue from use of property

RO s e

Original Final
Biidget Budgat
3 -3 - 5
15,000 15,000

Variance with

Final Budget-
Actual Pos (Neg)
2,688 $ 2,688
15,530 530

Al e 'ﬁ’m“ (re— 5 e—" " 230 ) |

Charges for Services:
Charges for education

$ - 0%

80,280 §

£5,490 § 5210

T m— Ay wis “pr=z il L .
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Miscellaneous:
Miscellaneous

Recovered Costs:
Medicaid reimbursements
Insurance recoveries
E-Rate
Joint services reimbursements
Salary reimbursements
Schocel aclivity reimbursements
Title | indirect costs
Governor's school reimbursements

3 5,000 $ 13.718 § 13,718 8 -
$ 100,000 $ 140475 $ 149,196 $ 8,721
- 174 174 -
- 188,481 188,481 -
58,500 122,242 122,242 -
90,000 90,199 90,587 388
79,000 86,442 91,239 4,797
79,500 100,307 109,342 8,035
335,450 339,450 335,768 (3,652)
T ol —
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Schedule 1
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County of Pulaski, Virginia
Schedule of Revenues-Budget and Actual
Governmental Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

variance with

Original Final Fina! Budget-
Fund, Major and Minor Revenue Source Budaet Budget Actual Pos {Neq)
Discretely Presented Component Unit-Scheol Board: (continued)
Major Speciat Revenue Fund: (continued)
School Operating Fund: (continued)
Intergovernmental Revenues: {continued)
Revenue from the Commonwealih: (continued)
Categorical Aid: (continued)
Remedial summer education E] 176,844 % 139,917 3 139,917 3 .
Retirement 1,132,679 1,132,679 840,805 (291,874)
School food 33,741 33,741 35,163 1412
Share of state sales tax 4,161,237 3,857,495 3,971,122 113,627
Social security 877,238 877,238 867,391 (9,847)
Special education 1,613,312 1,613,312 1,595,203 (18,109)
Special education - foster care - - 40,127 40,127
Standards of learning algebra readiness 54,678 54,678 52,448 (2,230}
State lottery payments 305,420 273,109 383,679 110,570
Textbook payment 398,354 398,354 - (398,354)
Vgcational education-eguipment - - 12,777 12777
Yocational ococupaticnal preparednass - - 37,558 37,558
Vocational standards of quality payments 547,854 547,854 541,704 (6,150)
VPSA technology grant 360,330 345,969 - (345,969)
WTSF Virginia tobacco settfemeant 72 508 63,507 68,236 4729
Total Categorical Aid $ 28,076,235 § 26,623,157 § 25,689,098 § (1,034,061}
Tatal Revenue from the Commonwealth B 28,076,235 § 26,623,157 § 25589086 % (1,034,061}
Categorical Aid:
Forest reserve funds 3 - % - 8 28,558 % 28,558
Gear up access Virginia 26,490 26,480 28,400 1,910
Enhancing education through technology - 485,984.00 - (485,984)
Title | 1,646,087 1,760,124 1,135,768 {624,356)
Title | - ARRA - 655,420 291,722 (353,698)
Title VI-B, special education flow-through - ARRA 155,119 1,085 214 588,618 {496,5986)
Title VI-B, pre~school - ARRA 1,440,837 1,516,254 801,853 {714,301)
Title VI-B, interpreter M 38,600 - (38,600)
Vocational education 90,747 90,747 91,785 1,038
Special education-pre-school 34,452 34,452 27,699 (8,753)
Speclal education-pre-school - ARRA - 36,542 25,287 (11,255)
Drug free schools 23,154 24,278 24,187 {91)
Title lll, LEP 4,400 7767 - (7,767)
Title ll, Part A-Teacher quality grant 432,421 424 412 274,565 (149,743)
Title ll, Part O - - 318,202 316,202
Title 1§, Part D - ARRA - 1,223,171 682,330 (540,841)
Technology literacy challenge grani 12,573 13,369 25,959 12,690
Scheol Improvement - 331,760 184,676 (147,084}
Respanse to intervention 11,875 23,750 - {23,750}
Tille IV, Part 21 307,395 507,395 372,058 (135,337)
Schoal food 899,000 999,000 1,250,084 251,064
School food-Summer program - - 62,050 62,050
State fiscal stabilization - ARRA 1,810,014 2,881,771 2,808,314 (73,457)
Total Categorical Aid i 5,954,564 % 12,166,500 § 9,020,209 § {3,146,201)
Tolal Revenue from the Federal Government $ 6,094,564 § 12,166,500 $ 9,020,299 § {3,146,201)
Tolal Discretely Presented Component Unit-School Board 3 47,681,404 5 52,577,952 § 47,214,246 § (5,363,708)
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County of Pulaski, Virginia
Schedule of Expenditures-Budget and Actual
Governmental Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Variance with

Original Final Final Budget-
Fund, Function, Activity and Element Budget Budget Actual Pos {Neg)
Primary Government:
General Fund:
General Government Administration:
Legislative:
Board of Supervisors 3 129242 § 178,131 § 158,762 § 19,369
General and Financlal Administration:
County Administrator 3 226,448 § 228,020 $ 229377 % (1,357)
Assistant County Administrator 160,831 161,006 155,735 5271
Countly Attorney 66,120 66,120 38,571 27,549
Operations 83,511 86,330 84,348 1,882
Independent Auditor 60,584 60,584 39,696 20,888
Commissioner of the Revenue 439,733 455 308 392 632 62,377
Treasurer 455 349 458,236 415,738 43,498
Management Services 101,932 108,868 109,385 (519)
Director of Finance 109,308 133,954 131,684 2,250
Other General and Financial Administration 9100 31,791 20,357 11,434
Total General and Financial Administration 5 1,712,915 § 1,791,216 % 1617833 % 173,383
Board of Elacticns:
Etectoral Board 3 57,842 81832 § 80513 % 1.419
Registrar 84,227 94,388 g§7.648 6,740
Total Board of Elections 5 142,069 § 176,320 % 168,161 $ 8,159
Total General Government Administration $ 1,084,226 § 2145667 $ 1,944,756 % 200,911
Sudicial Administration;
Courts:
Circuit Court 5 55,883 § 60,621 % 60,539 § B2
Generat District Court 4,150 4,150 3,143 1,007
Mapistrate 200 200 - 200
Juvenile and Domestic Relations Court 5,280 5,290 2,947 2,343
Clerk of the Circuit Court 506,521 575,014 515,042 59,972
g L e —r | A—
i
Victim's Witness Assistance 127,854 131,054 131,007 47
Domestic Relations Legal Services 40,000 40,000 40,600 -
Womens Resource Victims Assistance 24,070 24,070 24,070 -
Total Courts 3 774696 § 852,127 ¥ 787 464 3 54,663
Commonwezlth's Attorney:
Commonwealth's Attorney 3 790,080 § 821,607 § 760,161 8 61,446
Total Judicial Administration 3 1,564,776 § 1,673,734 § 1,647,625 § 126,109
Public Safety
Law Enforcement and Traffic Control:
Sheriff 3 3,241,253 § 3,394,436 § 3,240,622 & 153,814
Fira and Rescue Services:
E-911 3 166,616 § 172,716 & 136141 § 36,575
Wireless E-811 42,0600 42,000 7,689 34,311
Forest Fire Protection 6,664 7.793 7.793 -
Volunteer Fire Departments 263,584 331,022 292,201 38,821
Western Virginia EMS 7,352 7,352 7,352 -
Contribution to REMS} 106,981 129,808 129,805 -
Total Fire and Rescue Services 3 503,197 & 680,688 § 580,981 8§ 108,707
Correction and Detention:
Regional Jail Payments 5 20191023 § 2,019,103 $ 1,823,737 § 195,366
Couri Services 5,800 10,185 5,145 4,040

NRV Juvenile Detention Home 177,128 176,128 178,928 200
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County of Pulaski, Virginia
Schedule of Expenditures-Budget and Actual
Governmental Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Variance with

Original Final Final Budget-
Fund, Function, Activity and Element Budget Budget Actual Pos {Neg}
General Fund: {continued)
Public Safety (continued)
Correction and Detenticn: {continued)
Pretrial Services Grany $ 227173 & 297 266 $ 278,209 % 18,067
Community Corrections 449,860 498,150 469,235 28,915
Tetal Correction and Detention $ 2,879,164 § 3,003,832 $ 2,756,254 $ 247 578
Inspections:
Building Inspections % 150,627 § 150,627 $ 149,443 § 1,184
Code Enforcement 49,346 49,346 47,938 1,408
Tetal Inspections $ 189,973 § 199,973 § 107,381 § 2,592
Other Protection:
Animal Control g 247,917 § 270,320 & 252,259 § 18,061
Medical Examiner 500 520 620 (100)
Emergency Management 89,161 107 459 109,552 (2.083)
Emergency Services Grants - 111,943 102,756 9,187
Totai Other Protection 3 337,678 § 490242 $ 465,187 § 25,0568
Total Public Safety g 7,251,165 § 7779171 & 7,240,425 $ 538,746
Public Works:
Sanitation and Waste Removal:
General Engineering % 124,142 3 131,006 $ 126,994 $ 4,012
Landfill 80,330 §9,630 92,001 7,539
Clean Cemmunity Council 46 892 46,882 25,767 21,125
Total Sanitation and Waste Removal 5 231,354 § 277,528 % 244,852 § 32,676
Maintenance of General Building and Grounds:
General Properlies 3 727,818 § 783,034 3§ 763,217 % 19,817
Cleaning Services 162,801 164,693 150,437 14,256
NRV Salaries and Benefiis Reimbursement 161,502 164,171 157,653 6,518
NRV Airport Maintenance Contribution 74,921 74,921 74,921 -
Property cleanup 5,000 5,000 17,011 (12,011)
Total Maintenance of General Buildings and Grounds 3 1,132,132 $ 1,191,819 & 1,163,238 § 28,580
Total Public Works 3 1,363,486 § 1,469,347 § 1,408,091 § 61,256
Health and Welfare:
Health:
Supplement of Local Health Depariment $ 295,886 § 205,886 3 279,768 § 16,118
Mental health and mental Retardation:
Community Services Board ¥ 89646 3 80646 $ 89,646 § -
Welfare:
Public Assistance % 6,017,800 $ 6,623,126 5,963,952 § 659,174
Welfare Administration 980,814 80,914 86,509 (5,595)
Comprehensive Services Act-Administration 146,739 146,739 62,099 84,640
Comprehensive Services Act 3,667,409 4,305,894 4,096,254 209,840
Area Agency on Aging 16,485 18,485 16,485 -
QOffice on Youth 79,200 104,050 103,605 445
Pulaski Area Transit 62,300 62,300 62,300 -
New River Community Action 52,757 52,757 52,7867 -
NRV Disability Services 10,598 10,598 10,568 -
Virginia Juvenile Commission on Crime 48,748 51,350 50,733 B17
Fairview District Home 89,397 80,397 89,397 -
Brain Injury Services of SWVa 5,000 5,000 5,000 -
RSVP Program 12,886 12,986 12,386 -
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County of Pulaski, Virginia
Schedule of Expenditures-Budget and Actual
Governmental Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Variance with

Original Final Final Budget-
Fund, Function, Activity and Element Budget Budget Actual Pos {Neq)
General Fund: {continued)
Health and Welfare: (continued)
Weifare: (continued)
Crossroads Shelter 3 4500 § 4,500 § 4,500 $ -
Children's Advocacy Program 1,000 1,000 1,000 -
NRV Cares 4,600 4,500 4,600 -
Free Clinic of Pulaski County 27,000 27,000 27,000 -
Literacy Valunieers of America 3,084 3,084 3,084 -
Commission on Chitdren and Families - 45827 45,544 283
Goodwill Industries 14,692 14,992 14,992 -
Total Welfare 3 10,355,407 & 11,672,400 § 10,723,295 § 949,204
Tota! Health and Welfare $ 10,740,939 % 12,068,031 § 51,092,709 § 965,322
Education:
Other Instructiona! Costs:
Cantribution to New River Community College 3 15,601 $ 23,537 & 15691 $ 7.846
Contribution to Pulaski County School Board 40,818,396 11,197,540 50,272,595 924,945
Total Edugation 3 10,834,087 § 11,221,077 & 10,288,286 3 932,781

ot (=

Parks and Recreation:

Parks % 21,260 % 34,258 § 34713 § {455)
Recreation 292,834 347,430 347,765 {335)
Friends of Claytor Lake 26,621 52,165 53,223 {1,0568)
Randolph Park 258,596 289,450 284,255 5,185
Caounty Celebration - Fire works 15,000 15,000 - 15,000
Claytor Lake Celebration 5,000 15,866 16,364 (488)
Tolal Parks and Recreation 3 619,411 § 754169 § 736,320 $ 17,849
Cultural Enrichment:
Fine Arts Center $ 13,660 & 16,160 § 16,160 $ -
Histarical Landmarks 6,000 6,000 6,000 -
County History Publication 2,500 3,500 11 3,489
Friends of the Pulaski Theater 2,500 5,000 5,000 -
Return to Roots - - 2,500 {2,500)
Jamestown 2007 Celebration - 1,150 985 165
Total Culiural Enrichment 3 24660 § 31,810 § 30,656 § 1,154
Library:
Library Administration 3 575,288 § 586,418 § 542417 & 54,001
Total Parks, Recreation and Cultural $ 1,216.359 § 1,382,397 § 1,300,393 § 73,004

Community Development:
Planning and Community Development:

Community Development 3 99,208 § 103,364 § 92,746 $ 10,618
Economic Development 50,677 49,977 46,939 3,038
Clbargf “qpreeawn [Ty (130 (LW 1008
industrial Park Maintenance 600 730 723 7
Visitors' Center 80,877 100,877 B2,958 17,919
Planning and Zoning 103,821 121,029 120,372 857
NRV Planning District Commission 31,554 31,554 31,554 -

Baskerville Housing Project - 48,500 47,858 642
NR Highland 700 700 700 -

NRV Compatitiveness Center - 8,300 8,421 {121)
Contribution to Wireless Authority - - 6,382 {6,382)
Contribution to Pulaski County IDA - 200,000 326,455 {126,455)

Contribution to Pulaski County PSA - 5,584,746 3,734,584 1,850,162
Total Pianning and Community Development 3 387,437 % 6.260.777 $ 4.509692 1,751,085
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County of Pulaski, Virginia
Schedule of Expenditures-Budget and Actual
Governmental Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010
Variance with
Qriginal Final Final Budget-
Fund. Function. Activity and Element Budget Budget Actual Pos (Neal
General Fund: {continued)
Community Development: (continued)
Envircnmental Management:
Contribution o Soil and Water District $ 12,269 % 12,269 § 12,269 % -
Cooperative Extension Program:
Extension Office 3 99,304 § 99,304 % 91,001 $ 8,303
Total Community Development 5 499,010 § 6,372,350 § 4,612,862 § 1,769,388
Debt Service:
Principal Retirement $ 1,707,118 § 9,442120 § 9442120 % -
Interest and Other Fiscal Charges 1,756,735 2,430,800 1,590,318 840,484
Total Debt Service 5 3,463,854 11,872,920 § 11,032,436 § 840,484
Total General Fund % 38,020,012 3 55,974,694 § 50,476,683 § 5,498,011
Major Capital Project Fund:
Schoot Construction Fund:
Capital Projects:
Riverlawn Elamentary Schocl $ 18 2,287,545 § 685,058 § 1,602,487
Total School Construction Fund $ 1% 2,287545 § 685,058 $ 1,602,487

Nan-Major Capital Project Fund:
County CIP Fund:
General Government Administration:
W‘”ﬁ'—.’mﬂ Migoneinl Ldoaie i~ ey

Information Technology $ 10,000 21540 8 4,257 & 17,283
Communications 35,000 281,203 33,839 247,364
Total General and Financial Administration 5 45000 § 302,743 § 38,096 § 264,647

Public Safety
Law Enforcement and Traffic Control.

Sheriff $ 115,000 § 316,103 § 125,337 § 190,766
Fire and Rescue Services:
Volunteer Fire Deparimeants 3 205,000 § 230,085 § 4,973 % 225112
Total Public Safety 3 320,000 § 545,188 § 130,310 § 415,878
Health and Welfare:
Health:
Health department roof 3 - 3 80,453 § 100,179 % {18,726}
Education:
Other Instructional Costs:
7R yaeramenite oo AIececs @ noAdEQ. 4y i
- ey o — Ny

W y

Parks, Recreational and Cultural:
Parks and Recreation:

Recreation $ -8 418,500 3 74,790 $ 343,710
Loving field - 55,000 1,692 53,308
NRV Fair - 10,000 11,181 (1,181}

Total Parks and Recreation 3 - 3 483,500 % 87,663 § 395,837
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Governmental Funds
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Variance with

Original Final Final Budget-
Fund, Function, Activity and Element Budget Budget Actual Pos {Neq)
MNon-Major Capitai Project Fund: {continued)
County CIP Fund: (continued)
Community Development:
Planning and Cemmunity Development:
Planning and Zoning - 3 8,000 % 8,081 B {61)
Iir nﬁal ﬂv‘“nn e i ) ¥, ‘E’Lﬂ N ACI 40 'q’] '[ﬁ\_l_"i - EPJ'
Other community development - 1,272 81,238 {79,968)
Contribution to REMSI 85,000 238,000 238,000 -
Contribution 1o DA - 367,000 447 615 {80,615)
Total Planning and Community Development 253,000 § 3,671,885 § 858,622 $ 2,613,363
Total County CIP Fund 1,111,345 § 5555314 § 1,686,020 $ 3,858,294

S ey —— S IR e e e .

Discretely Presented Component Unit-School Board:
Major Special Revenue Fund:
School Operating Fund:
Education:
Administration of schoals:
Administration, health and attendance

Instructional:
Instruction

Other operating costs
Pupil transportation
Operation and maintenance of school plant
Food services
Technical resources
Facilities
Total other operating costs

Total Discretely Presented Component Unit-School Board

3,449,557 $ 3,514,468 § 3,352,857 % 181,611
32872215 $ 35687120 § 31476497 § 4,210,632
2181355 8 2,195,665 $ 2,197,559 % (894}
4,725,776 5,175,250 4,910,545 264,705
2,274,000 2,268,500 2,426,022 (157,522}
1,648,228 3,735,040 2,883,296 852,844
579,202 - - -
11,408561 $  13,376.355 § 12,417,422 $ 058,933
47730333 § 52577952 § 47246776 § 5,331,176




Statistical Section




05L'Z8L'LE 920°149 LOg'L8b'p 006'ZSE'} 606'565'L 1 ¥¥6°L6E'S $9E'59Z') g1e'251°L AR rAN 925'964°L 90-5002
¥6¥'E6S €S LLLYal Zrs'ees LWO'LLE') 221'1E5'01 6E1°295'8 G58'289 I¥B'SEE’L GLE'8ET') i54'50L'T 10-8002
ocl'sez’LE gze'gle't Zs5'Eve’L ZEL'S0F'L £45'¥20'T1 Z22°504'6 Lpi'30Z coe'Bre’L 219'26Z'L LG0'ZET'T 80-200¢
ZBL'99ZZr 06b'6RT'E FIL'808'E 856 LLY'L 225'485'EL 96E 10201 125'92F'L GSGLLY'Y ¥88°E8¥'L £69'5¥9'Z 60-8002
gzL'elo'cy § ££5'199't $  £85'900'G & 0£2'SPE'L $ ¥6¥'LZEOL $ 808'0e0'LL 3 PeL'0skl § 8£9'566'L $ oee'evs'l $ $15i22T % 0Ol-800Z
[T Mo Waal jugwdojaaag Jein}|ng pue [EEEELEE] EXCITEINY SHIOM faeg uonedsiunupy uopensIHwpYy IEETN
-Buo uo Anunuwon ‘uoneasIey pue yyesH aqnd agnd {e1ipne JUBLEUIDADD |easid
P ] ‘syled |e1auae)

SIE3 A [EDSIL 9Al 15ET
uopaung Ag sosuadxg apim-JuawIuiano
e1uBaIA ‘BseInd jo Aunod
L 21qeL

-77 -



-78.-

L16°125'ee 9G¥ ¥1LO'e IET'G8 520'8.L9 ¥YOZ'ZL6'G 0EL'6¥0'LL £18'89L ¥l 'v06'6 ¥ET'619 80-5002
§81°2¥5'6E L6P'898°L 8GO°/G PEVLOL7L £85'085'9 Z.1'6£8'81 9P 18 9G9'LLEDL SLL'0p9 £40-500¢
SY0'GOS LY £Z8'co8'l ¥£0'81L L16'86¥F 6L9'GLL'D GOG'LZG'6L - ¥95'0LF L L €90'0LY 80-£00Z
0£0'99Z'r oseerL's z18'92s 5P 0vS 6L6'595'9 £€2'621'02 - Zoe' /021 LOB'9ET’ L 60-8002
9zL'L8e'or 88Z°1£9'C $ 0£9'80C ¢ lez'i6z $ IPeLLL'S $ LL2'eLLLE ¥0E'Z89°E $ BEE0LOZE $ §ze'zITL $ 016002
[e3cy, sweifold SNOBUE|[39SIN sBuiuleq Saxe] Soxe) SHONQLIUGT SUONNGLAUSD EERIIVED Teaj
anadg 01 juaunsasy| {2207 fpadosd pue sjuel pue sjueln 104 12951
pajoLysay 1oN pejoLsaun FEIH) [elauag enden BugeladQ sabieys
SUORNGLIUOD
pue sjueID

SANUAASY {Blausn

senusaey weibolg

€ °l9el

SIRBA [BOSI] 9Al] ISET]

SBNUOASY DPIM-ILSIILISAOD)
eliBaA ‘Hse|nd jo fjunod



"SpUOQ |0OYDS Ul 000'00S°0% JO BUIPUNA) B} Gt anp LO-000Z 1224 [295H U PASeaIau) 83KISS 1990 "000°GEL" LS 1C JUNDWE U1 Ul 10U 2NUIASI SSES] Y| BY) JO WaWAEHAI 0} 3NP (1-B0GE JEBA [80SY Ul paseaioul eojnes 1980 ()
‘pleOg |C0YIS-IUN USUDdIWDT) pauasald ADieIosl] 0 JUBLILISAGS) AUBLUL WOJ) UORNGUILDS S3PNPXY ()
“pJEDg |00URS-IUM UBLedWID: paIuBsad Ai219195I] S1 pUE (UoKINASUOS |00yaS Bulpniaxa) Jusuauanog Alewud sapnpul (1)

Y24 1S0'SS o8P'8LE'L - +68'F9Z 940'6ER SrLLLLPE 00B'98L'Y S5£'598 yhe'rOb' v WwEGLE DBY'GIS'L 100002
S60'$9Z' 1S (234 1%4 - CLF'ELE £L5'106 jalsishne] o RS LIPS 5eL'008 ZNSELE'Y 099'LL6 LIyl Z0-100Z
911'008'55 viG'e82 L - LEQTLOT BLELLL)L L0g'1L9Z'9E 7LL00%'S e LE8 159'pi5°S 286'086 LGO'E08'L £0-Z002
1GF'S08'98 68L'€95'Z - 056'6¥Y ZESLET'L $G6'6P2L'9E LPB'E0Z L vi8'198 6BL'ESL'S G60'286 219'€05°L PO-E00Z
+.€'699'C8 ECZ'TGY'Z - VYBE'PLY $O6°LRZL L0g'S8r' Lk 9202042 YBU2S6 £61°095'G gra'nR0'L CLOPLO'L G0-¥00Z
8LP'9L9'69 026'662'2 81g'2 CID'LLE Y 9GE'GZF L L6G'LYY'TY YE5'98E'8 LOK'660° 1 9z8'v04'9 YEZ'EEL L 609094t £0-5002
9Lg'zLL0L £868'C00'2 - 208'sZ0’L bLT'GEE'L B7L'9LL'Sk LOP'ZES'8 LEQZPL'L LEZ'LZS L £25'0L2°) Z9E'Z0L'Z 20-9002
GLL'8BY'EL LEB'PEY'E - G8G'965L 156'66€' L Ly L'9rg'oy 16TBOS'S oLg'e9e’ L PLE0E0'L 125°08€") 0€'1Z1'2 80-2002
SL0'Z6F'LE L16'E6E'E - P8G'LLS'S 950'L6€°} 8LO'Z00'8Y BY0'¥EE 0L 988’89’ L 126" LT L 196'6L¥'L GL2'e85'2 60-8002
$88'97 168 QEV'ZEO'LL ¢ - 3 P8G'LLSG  $ 960'268'L LIQEKO'ly 8 988'Z6L'LL  § 160'80Y' L SEL'0LE'L SZOLPEL  § Z668'286'L $ 0L-600Z
|ejoL nﬂv 221295 _EcwEtman a:mEno_wbwD jeaning pue nNu uonednpyg ER=AVET Y SHIOM, >umumm uonelswupy ugieslLpy Jea)
gqeqg -UON E_CBEEOU .:O_..mw.-uwm pue yyeay HqQngd anng |etpnr JUSWILLIBAGD |eosi4
teyied jelauan)

g€ 9l1qel

sleap [eosld us) 157
(1) uonoung Ag sainjipuadxs [BJUILLILLIDADS) [2ISUID)
elufaip “iise|nd jo Ajunon

-79.-






‘15aleiul pue Ajeuad sepnpou (1)

%EE'T) 066'851°C %1966 GLS'696'F | 805'66¢ %506 L00'7LS Pl 202’56t Gl L0-0002
%BL 7L LA A %02 86 £6.'986'G1 6SH°LCS %L0EB ¥£8'80¥'SL €21'/85'6) Z0-1L002
%BG 9L GGE'PER'T %1866 802'0/£'91 01’655 %0926 gzL'218'6L LOE' 80 LL £0-200¢
%L Gl Or'vL8'C %L 001 ¥BC'SPE 8l 616'208 %5096 G/E'985' 2L 9£9'252'8) #0-200¢
%92 €L 851'249'C %LT'66 9eS'tr/2'6l 269'818 %666 rg'ae¥'el £88'32r|61 S0-v002
%09°¢L L18¥'625°C %946 2822656l rLi' 205 %0166 898'F80'6L 828'/50'0¢ 90-500¢
%S L1 8/4'952'C %0F 16 086'550°0C 82¢'689 %¥FE 6 Z2G2'0e¥ 6l 676’ :wm_ow £0-900¢
%BLCL LIE'00Fr'C %2086 9G/'6863'8l L/¥'08 %1966 S8Z'8Le'8l Z60'c89'61 80-200¢C
%S6°L L £6G'145°C %6886 0S6'082°L2 rrL'0et %ELe6 018'09L't¢ #Po'6LS'LE 60-800¢
%9401 9£6'891'T %EP'86 9e5'8LLee % £92'Z8 $ %.0°96 £62'/802 % 080'856'2¢ 018002
AnaT Xe] (1) soxej Ana xey 0} SUOIDS||0D) {1} suopas|on pa1o3j|09 (1) suonoatjon (1) £nan ECETY
0] saxe| wanbujeg SUOI I3[0 Xeg Xep Aro 0 XeJ Xejl 122514
wanbuljeg Suipuelsing Xe] |Bjol ejoL anbuljaqg juadlad sung |ejolL
JLRULEIEN| 10 Juaniag

G aqel

siea) [edsld ual 1sen

SUOI}28|[00 puE salAaT xe | Apadosd
eluIBaA ‘piseingd jo fjunon

1
~—
lee)

1



"UOISSHUIOT) uoiel1odlon) 81e1g auy Ag pauys!|qeIsa aie sanjea passessy (2)
"anjeA 1B B JO %00 | 18 sjuswssassy (1)

128'00e L1 L 19¢°¥5'98 0L4'6%9'L 00.'9£9'051 06/'626'CkE $GEIE6'9LE'L L0-000¢
[£0°68€'98.°L 00.°65€°6/ £192'0¥86'9 00¢'vEP 081 £¥F'90£'952 128°168°¢oz'L ¢0-100¢
LAV 29228t 76i'8LE'E8 G8E'E50'g 05¢'QLL'eBl 1Z0'SBLE'EST 128'68L'98Z'L £0-co0¢
#0'860'650'2 G¥/'C0p 08 99.'619'2 LBZ LLE'0BL 09¢€'288'05¢ Zr2'188'625 L 70-£00¢
8/0'81L2'0¢E'T aro'ges’cel 6.1'9P2'9 LG2'€09°0LL LER'SLO'8YT 695'98.'08/'L S0-#00¢
LZO'EPF'G9E'C 9Z5'680'170L LO¥'202'S Z.2'€82'Es1 Z11'859'88¢ 0GL'6GZ'¥L8L 90-6002
JANCTA A TAMA LEP'9LL V0L 651'680'G L10'606'ZLL 226'9¥.L'elT S68'¥0S'EL6') 20-9002
18Z'GZF'ers'e 8G1°/68°G8 2¥9'0ee's 002'LEC'PLL 162'812'88¢2 S8’ /82 36l 80-2002
725'890°218'2 21€'18C°16 - 9GZ'129' /2L 6/8'V6'LILE 090'602'982'C 60-8002
£6.°€81°GEC'E Zi0'L64'62) - $ ££8'765 281 £20'810'58¢ 626'684'/29'C 01-600¢
|el0L {z) 201108 jeuden S|00 DO ojelsg Aea)
ayqng Seyaa pue 2{IqON pue |eay {eosi4
Apupyory Ruedotd
jeuoslod

9 a|qeL

slea) |edsld ua] jse

Kuadouyd ajgexe] jo (L) anjep passassy

eiuibuaip ‘pise|ngd Jo Ajunon

-82 -



o

‘600

v00C diey 11y 8y)
c00c iByisiy e
AN 08’
Q99'0/e9'0 08’
990 08
29'0/99°0 08
290 08
290 08
Z9'0 08

290 08
060 -
080 ¢ -

SOLWOH _E,

ajiqol ,S1uB.

lalqe]

inr

el

.
—

-
-

—

e

- .o

#‘?r"







Uy JWauodwo) pajuass,

%O0FElL ¥2.'160'GG

%aL8 GBY¥OT LS

%lEC o1 1'009'6S

%LS Y LS¥'G08'05

%l6¢ r.€'699'C9

%0E€ 8L¥'919'69

%98'¢ gLGeLL0L

%8GC GLL'869'e.

Y% Qv G/9°C67'L8

%B8E'CL 78801 68
sainjipuadxg sainjipuad;
[BIUSUILIDADL) |EJUBLUUIDA

lesauacy o} |elausn
ERIPNET R T | Ty lejol a
Jo oney »

|esouas [ejot o3 3qaq | +

6 slqel

>
4 .
L]
’ . I
L ;
= 13
E__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
—
k" /'"+W/4/— — /D
e m e w el .
-
F1y S PP
T
!
| "
’ 1
3
- i
[ 3

1
.
"




COMPLIANCE SECTION



ROBINSON, FARMER, COX ASSOCIATES

CERTTHIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANIYS A PROFESSIONAL LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

To the Members of the Board of Supervisors
County of Pulaski, Virginia

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the discretely presented
component units, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the County of
Pulaski, Virginia, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2010, which collectively comprise the County of
Pulaski, Virginia’s basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated December 8,
2010. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the Specifications for Audits of Counties, Cities, and Towns, issued by the Auditor of
Public Accounts of the Commonwealth of Virginia; and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the County of Pulaski, Virginia’s internal control
over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing
our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the County of Pulaski, Virginia’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly,
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the County of Pulaski, Virginia’s internal control
over financial reporting.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in
the preceding paragraph and was not designhed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
financial reporting that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses and therefore, there
can be no assurance that all deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses have been
identified. However, as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, we
identified certain deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be
material weaknesses.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. We consider the deficiency (2010-1) described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs to be a material weakness.

- 86 -



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the County of Pulaski, Virginia’s financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have
a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing
an opinion on comptiance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we
do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or
other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

The County of Pulaski, Virginia’s response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. We did not audit the County’s response and,
accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

We noted certain matters that we reported to management of the County of Pulaski, Virginia in a
separate letter dated December 8, 2010.
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ROBINSON, FARMER, COX ASSOCIATES

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS A PROFESSIONAL LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

Report on Compliance with Requirements That Could Have a Direct and Material Effect on Each
Major Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance in
Accordance with OMB Circular A-133
Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of the Board of Supervisors
County of Pulaski, Virginia

Compliance

We have audited the County of Pulaski, Virginia’s compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct
and material effect on each of the County of Pulaski, Virginia’s major federal programs for the year
ended June 30, 2010. The County of Pulaski, Virginia's major federal programs are identified in the
summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.
Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each of
its major federal programs is the responsibility of the County of Pulaski, Virginia’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the County of Pulaski, Virginia’s compliance based on our
audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133,
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB
Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could
have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence about the County of Pulaski, Virginia’s compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit

1 [ — I _ . L Y . sl __ _~ [y r_rm _1 " LW L) LS B §




In our opinion, except for the noncompliance described in the preceding paragraphs, the County of
Pulaski, Virginia complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred to
above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year
ended June 30, 2010.

Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the County of Pulaski V1rg1n1a is responsxbte for establishing and maintaining
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County of Pulaski, Virginia
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Federal Pass-through Entity
Federal Grantor/State Pass-Through Grantor/ CEDA Identifying Federal
Program or Cluster Title Number Number Expenditures
Cepartment of Health and Human Services:
Pass-through Payments:
Department of Social Services:
Chitd Care and Development Fund Cluster:

Child Care and Development Block Grant 93.575 60544, 80545 ] 113,604
Child Care Mzndatery and Matching Funds of he Child Care and Development Fund 93.596 90116, 50117, 90118, 90236 71625

90237, 90238, 90378
ARRA - Child Care and Developmant Block Grant 93713 90116, 90117, 50118, 90236 44,358

90237, 50238, 50378
Promofing Safe and Stable Famities 93.556 90249, 90360 27,086
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) 93558 90109, 90110, 90411, 80112 808,333

90127, 90229, 50230, 90231
80232, 90247, 80366, 90409

90411, 90412, 50413
Refugee and Entrant Assistance - State Administered Programs 93566 90113, 50233, 90413, 90713 1,118
LavweIngome Home Erargy Assistance 93.568 90114, 80115, 90234, 90235 25,954
Child Weifare Services-Slate Grants 93.645 90251 1,450
Foster Care - Title IV-E 93658 90105, 90106, 30107, 90209 794,975

90226, 90226, $0227, 0263
80258, 90405, 30406, 0407
90636, 90637, 90639, 50650
80705, 80708, 80707, 90733

90738
ARRA - Foster Care - Tifle IV-E 93658 90636, 90637, 50639, 90658 94,149
Adopion Assistance 93659 90708, 90214, 50228, 90408 81,222
90606, 90708
ARRA - Adoption Assistance 93.859 90606 9,189
Social Services Block Grant 93.667  90120,90122, 90123, 90240 159,073

90242, 80243, 90262, 90306
80312, 90322, 60339, 90340

Chafes Foster Gare independence Program 93.674 50254 12632

Children's Health Insurance Program 93767  50102,90222, 50402, 90702 21475

Medical Assistance Program 93778 50101, 90148, 90213, 90221 279,118

' 90266, 90407, 50445, 80701
0746
Chalee Edvcation and Training Vouchers Program 93.589 9353 4,923
Total Department of Health and Human Services 3 2,550,284
Beparment of Agricutture:
Pass-through Payments:

Deparient of Agricuthere:
Child Nutrition Cluster:

Food Distribution (Note 3) 10.555 40623 $ 117,053

Summer Food Service Program for Children 16,559 62,050

Total Depariment of Agricutiure 3 179,103

Department of Education:

Child Nutrition Cluster:

Nationa! Schoot Breakfast Program 10.553 40581 3 279,703

Nationai Schook Lunch Program 10.555 40623 827,870

Fresh Fruit and Vegetable Program 10.582 40599 25438

Schools and Roads - Grants to States 10.665 43841 28,558

Totat Depariment of Education $ 1,161,569
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County of Pulaski, Virginia
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (continued)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Federal Pass-through Entity

Federal Grantor/State Pass-Through Grantord CFbA Identitying Federal
Program o Cluster Title Numbar Humber Expenditures
Department of Agricutture: (continwed}
Pass-through Payments: (confinued)
Depariment of Social Services:
State Administrafive Matching Grants for the Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Frogram 10581 90103, 80704, 50212, 90223 § 481,663
80224, 90403, 00404, 96703
90704
ARRA - State Administrative Matching Grants for the Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program 10.561 90103, 50104, 90212, 90223 15,434
90224, 90403, 90404, 90703
90704
Total Department of Sccial Services H 497,097
Diract Payments:
Rural Ecenomic Development Grant 10.854 Not applicable § 8,287
ARRA - USDA Communiy Faciliies Grants 10.780 ot applicable 25,000
USDA Community Fagifties Granis 10.766 Not applicable 3,600,197
Total Girect Payments $ 3633484
Total Department of Agriculiure 5 5,471,253
Depariment of the Interior:
Direct paymends;
Bureau of Land Management
Payments in Lieu of Taxes 15.226 Not applicable 3 14,359
Depariment of Justice:
Pass-through Payments:
Depastment of Criinal Justice Sesvices:
Crime Vichms Assistance 16,575 DOVAGXO0DT 3 40,304
ARRA - Edward Byrne Memoriat Justice Assistance Grant Program - Grants fo Units of Local Government 16.804 21816
Total Depariment of Justice 3 12,120
Compensation Board;
ARRA - Edward Byrne Memoriat Justice Assistance Grant Progranm - Grants io $tates and Terrilories 16.803 095UB%033 3 95,006
Tota! Department of Justica 3 208,118
Department of Transportation:
Pass-through payments:
Depariment of Mator Vehicles:
State and Community Highway Safely - Open Container 20.600 SC-2010 50357 3977 $ 11,326
interagency Hazardous Malerials Public Sector Training and Piarning Grants 20.703 52619 3,500
Totat Depariment of Transportation ) 14,826
Cepartment of Education:
Pass-through Payments:
Dapartment of Education:
Titlg |, Part A Clustor:
Tile I: Granis io Local Education Agencies 84.010 42802, 42901 5 1,135,768
ARRA - Title |: Grants to Local Education Agencies 84.389 42913 291,722
Special Education Cluster:
Special Education - Grants to States 84,027 43071 801,953
ARRA - Special Education - Grants to Sates 84.391 61245 588,618
Speciat Education - Preschoot Grants 84.173 62521 27,699
ARRA - Special Education - Preschool Grants 84.392 62521 25,287
Education Technology Stafe Grants Clusfer:
Educaticn Technology State Grants 84.318 §1600 316,202
ARRA - Education Technclogy State Grants 84.388 60857 682,330
Career and Technical Education - Basic Gran!s o States 84.048 51055 91,785
Safe and Drug Free Schoofs and Communities 84.186 65011 24,187
Twenty-first Cantury Community Learning Centers B4.287 60565 372,058
Gaining Eatly Awareness and Readiness for Undesgraduate Programs 84.334 28,400
International Education - Technological Innovation and Coaperation for Foreiga Information Access 84.337 43040 184,676
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County of Pulaski, Virginia
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (continued)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Federal Pass-through Entity

Federal GrantoriState Pass-Through Grantor/ CFDA tdentifying Federal
Program o Cluster Tilia Number Humber Expenditures
Appalachian Regien Commission:
Pass Through Payments:
Department of Housing and Community Development
Community development block grant 14.228 50797 3 57107
Depariment of Homeland Security:
Pass-through Payments:
Depariment of Emesgency Management
Management Performance Grant 97.042 52749 4 3,204
State Homeland Securify Program §7.073 52707 6,500
Tolal Bepartment of Homeland Security § 37004
Total Federal Expenditures $ 16,033,288

Note 1 — Basis of Presentation
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the federal grant activity of the County of Pulaski, Virginia under programs of the federat
government for the year ended June 33, 2010, The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Cireular A-133, Audifs of Stafes, Local
Govermnments, and Non-Proft Organizaions. Because the Schedule presents only a selected porfion of the operations of the County of Pulaski, Virginia, it i nol intended fo and does not
present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash fiows of the County of Putaski, Virginia.

Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
{1) Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are recognized foiowing the cost principles contained in OMB A-67,
Cost Principles for Siate, Loca), and Indian Tribal Gavemments, wherein cestain types of expenditures are not allowable or are imited as o reimbursement
{2) Pass-through entily ientifying pumbers are presented where avadable.

Note 3 — Food Donaticn
Nonmonetary assistance i reporied in the schedule at the fair market value of commedities received and disbursed. At.Juae 30, 2010, the Courty had no focd commodities in inventory.

Nole 4 — Relationship to the Financial Statements:
Federal expengitures, revenuas and capital contributions are reperied in the County's basic financial statements as foflows:
Intergavernmenta fedesal revenues per fhe basie financial staterments:

Primary Govesnment:
General Fund otk $ 7,004,700
Add: Debt proceeds - County CIP Fund 8.287
Total Primary Government -] 7.012.987
Componeat Unit Schaols:
Schoo! Operating Fund total $ 9,020,209
Total Component Unit Schools § 9,020,299
Total faderal expenditures per the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 5 16,033,266
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County of Pulaski, Virginia

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2010

,: T T |

Type of auditor’s repoit issued: Unqualified
Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weaknesses identified? Yes
Significant deficiencies? None reported
Noncompliance materiat to financial statements noted? No
Feders! Awards
Inéemal control aver major programs:
Material weaknesses identified? Yes
Significant deficiencies? None reported
Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs: Qualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
teporied in accordance with Circular A-133,

Section .510 {a)? Yes
ldentification of major programs:
CFDA # Name of Federal Program or Cluster
93.658 Foster Care-Title IVE
10.553/10.555/10.559 Child Nutrition Cluster
10.561 SNAR - Cluster
84.010/84.388 Title | Cluster
84.027/84.173/84.301/84.302 Special Education - iDEA Cluster
84.318/84.386 Education Technology Formula Grant
84.3%4 State Fiscal Stabilization Funds
93.575/93.596/93.713 Child Care and Development Funds Cluster

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A
and Type B programs $480,999
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County of Pulaski, Virginia

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2010

Section Il - Financial Statement Findings

2010-1

Criteria: Per auditing standards, an auditee should have sufficient expertise in the selection and application of
accounting prirciples used in the preparation of the annuat financial report. In addition, the auditee should
have sufficient internat controls over the preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principlss. Furthermore, reliance on the auditors to post such fransactions is not a
component of the auditee's internal controls.

Condition: The County’s 2010 adjusted trial balance required significant adjustments that were made by the auditors.
Cause of Condition:

The County has historically relied on the auditors for assistance in preparing the financial statements and
related adjustments.
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preventcomml of detected by the eptitv's internal controls over financial reporti
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Recommendation: a timely manner.
Management's
Response: Management is dedicated fo complying with the concepts set forth by auditing standards and wilk make

efforts in the future to eliminate material errors from its adjusted frial balance.



County of Pulaski, Virginia

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Year Ended June 30, 2010

2010-3
Title VI-B-Special Education-CFDA No. 84.027/84.173/84.351/84.392
Criteria: Per single audit requirements, if an employee's time is ailocated to several programs, the percentage
allocated to Title VI-B agrees with a contractual percentage.
Condition: Unallowable expenses: A review of payroll expenditures on a test basis disclosed salaries reimbursad in
full with Title VI-B funds for employees whose time is split between different programs.
Context; Testing of 40 payroll disbursements revealed that cne employee's time was not appropriately allocated
based on duties performed.
Cause: Appropriate internal controls are net in place to ensure thal each employee’s time is allocaled
appropriately based on contraciual agreements and actua! dulies performed.
Effect: The Schocl Board received more funds from the Federal Government than they would have received
ctherwise.
Recommendation: Management should put in place appropriate internal controls to ensure that this prablem is not recurring in
the future.
Management's
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the contractual percentege and will follow this guideline in the future.

Section IV - Status of Prior Audit Findings and Quiestioned Costs

Financial statement finding 2010-1 was recurring this year,



